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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG

LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

ERBMEXZHMARLT ([BXF]) GEMNES

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks
of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally
small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liguid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Shanxi Changcheng
Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The directors
of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there
are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.
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| am honored to serve as the Chairman of the board of
directors (the “Board”) of the Company.

The Board and the management team will strive to
comprehensively improve the Group’s operations, production,
research & development and market development capabilities
in order to enhance corporate value and financial performance.
Although the COVID-19 pandemic (the “pandemic”) in 2022
still has a continuous impact on the Company’s operations, the
board of directors and management team have been actively
working to minimize the impact to ensure that the Company
could respond in a timely manner and achieve significant
development.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all employees for their contributions and to
shareholders and investors for their support.

Wu Bo
Chairman

Taiyuan City, Shanxi Province, the PRC
19 May 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

Business Review
Business of the Group

Since the listing of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) on GEM of the Stock Exchange in
2004, the Group has been engaging in the design, research,
development, manufacture and sale of image transmission
fiber optic products as its principal business. Image
transmission fiber optics products manufactured by the Group
are image transmission devices containing a rigidly bundle of
optical fibers arranged in an ordered fashion so that images
can be transmitted from one end of the optical fiber bundle
and displayed on the other end of the bundle. A typical image
transmission fiber optic product of the Group would consist of
over 10 million optical fibers.

At present, the Group produces five main products, including
fiber optic inverters, fiber optic straight plates, fiber optic face
plates, fiber optic tapers and microchannel plates. Although
fiber-optic imaging devices (fiber optic inverters, fiber optic
face plates, fiber optic tapers and microchannel plates)
have been increasingly used in medical imaging equipment,
digital photography, physics, biochemistry and other civilian
applications in recent years, they are currently mainly used in
military low-light night vision devices and military low-light
night vision video systems. Its customers are mainly located at
China, Russia and the other Asian countries.

Image Transmission Fiber Optic Production
Improvement Measures and Technology Upgrade

Since the fourth quarter of 2018, the Group have implemented
various measures (the “Operational Measures”) to improve
the business capabilities of the Group.

In view of the image transmission fiber optic production
technology upgrade, the Group received a subsidy from the
industrial transformation and upgrading fund in the amount
of RMB20,000,000 (the “ITU Fund”) from the government
of Taiyuan City, Shanxi Province on 26 December 2018,
which specifically supports the industrial transformation and
upgrading and technological transformation project of the
Group.

Following the outbreak of the COVID-19 epidemic in early
2020, the Group failed to complete its refinancing exercises
as scheduled, which forced the Group to suspend its technical
upgrading and transformation projects. As the COVID-19
epidemic has ended, the Group will restart its refinancing
initiatives and the technical upgrading and transformation
projects as and when appropriate.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Position and Going Concern Issue

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had net current liabilities
and net liabilities of approximately RMB140,403,000 and
RMB97,926,000 respectively. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant
doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and therefore the Group may be unable to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

To improve the financial position of the Group, the directors of
the Company have implemented, including but not limited to,
the following measures (the “Financial Measures”):

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

at capital level:

Introducing new strategic investors into the private
placement of new shares/bonds, and negotiating
and implementing capital operation proposals with
shareholders and potential investment institutions;

at the operational level:

Revitalizing the long-term assets and planning to
lease out the properties temporarily not used in the
Company’s business operations, so as to increase
the property income; developing new products for
extending the downstream of the industrial chain and
strengthening the existing sales forces and introducing
more capable strategic sales agencies;, and taking the
advantage of the technological advantages accumulated
by the Company in the field of military products to
expand into the field of civilian products and increase
new customers and income sources; and

in respect of liabilities:

Negotiating and implementing loan interest reduction/
exemption schemes with shareholders and borrowers
and seeking financial support from substantial
shareholders and borrowers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

Details of the implemented Financial Measures are as follows:

In the fourth quarter of 2022, the Company entered
into a revised loan agreement with Taiyuan Changcheng
Optics Electronics Industrial Company Limited (“Taiyuan
Changcheng”), a substantial shareholder of the Company,
pursuant to which Taiyuan Changcheng has agreed to
extend the term of existing loan to the Company in the
principal amount of RMB14,600,000 to 31 December 2026,
commencing from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2026,
and delay the payment of interest for the years ended 31
December 2022, 2023, 2024 and 2025 to 2026. In the fourth
quarter of 2022, the Company entered into revised loan
agreements with two other borrowers, pursuant to which two
other borrowers have agreed to extend the term of existing
loans to the Company to 31 December 2026, and delay the
payment of interest for the years ended 31 December 2023,
2024 and 2025 to 2026.

One other borrower offers waiver of interest payable from the
date of first loan to 31 March 2023, and delays the payment
of interest for the period from 1 April 2023 to 31 December
2023, and the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2025 to
2026. The above amendments to the terms of the loans are
collectively referred to as (the “Loan Amendments”).

On 11 July 2019, Taiyuan Changcheng and Beijing Gensir Venture
Capital Management Limited (“Beijing Gensir”, the “Lenders”),
both being the substantial shareholders of the Company, have
entered into a loan agreement with the Company, pursuant to
which the Lenders agreed to grant a term loan in the principal
amount of RMB60,000,000 (“Shareholders’ Loan A") to the
Company for the purposes of funding of the technological
transformation and upgrade plan and replenishing the Company’s
general working capital. On 29 July 2019, the Lenders had further
entered into a supplemental loan agreement with the Company
in relation to the Shareholders’ Loan A.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On 30 July 2019, the Lenders have entered into another
loan agreement with the Company, pursuant to which the
Lenders agreed to grant a term loan in the principal amount
of RMB20,000,000 (“Shareholders’ Loan B"”) to the
Company for the purposes of funding of the technological
transformation and upgrade plan and replenishing the
Company’s general working capital.

The key terms of the Shareholders’ Loan A and the
Shareholders’ Loan B are summarized and disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 31 July 2019. According
to the update from the Lenders, the drawdown date of
the Shareholders’ Loan A and Shareholders’ Loan B will be
postponed to a time to be fixed with the Company.

In 31 December 2022, the Group renewed the outstanding
bank borrowing in the amount of RMB10,581,000.

Financial Review

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the sales of the Group
was approximately RMB15,535,000 (2021: RMB18,417,000),
representing a decrease of approximately 15.65% as compared
to that of the corresponding financial period. The Company’s
daily operations suffered from the complex national epidemic
situation in 2022, featuring frequent outbreaks in multiple
areas. The production and sales volume of the Group
declined for the year ended 31 December 2022, resulting in a
corresponding decrease in sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the sales cost
of the Group was approximately RMB9,578,000 (2021:
RMB15,100,000), representing a decrease of approximately
36.56% as compared to that of the last financial year. The
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in sales revenue and
corresponding decrease in cost of sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, The gross profit margin
of the Group was 38.35% (2021: 18.01%). The market
prices of the Group's products increased in 2022 as compared
with the previous year. At the same time, amid the complex
COVID-19 epidemic situation, thanks to the Group’s endeavors
to eliminate the adverse effects, the comprehensive pass rate
of products also increased significantly. Therefore, the gross
profit margin in 2022 recorded a significant increase.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded
other income, gains and losses amounting to approximately
RMB35,481,000 (2021: RMB2,854,000), representing a
significant increase of approximately RMB32,627,000 as
compared to that of the corresponding financial period.
The decrease was mainly due to the waiver of interest on
borrowings granted by one other borrower and fair value
gains on other borrowings. The details of other income, gains
and losses are set out in note (9) to the consolidated financial
statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded
administrative and other operating expenses of approximately
RMB20,733,000 (2021: RMB17,430,000), representing an
increase of approximately RMB3,303,000 as compared to that
of the corresponding financial period.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded
finance costs of approximately RMB8,293,000 (2021:
RMB8,406,000), representing a decrease of approximately
RMB113,000 as compared to that of the corresponding
financial period. The details of finance costs are set out in note
(10) to the consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the profit after tax
of the Group was approximately RMB12,418,000 (2021:
RMB-40,457,000).

Connected Transactions and Financial Assistance from
Taiyuan Changcheng, Beijing Gensir and Connected
Persons

The Group obtained financial assistance from Taiyuan
Changcheng, a substantial shareholder of the Company. As at
31 December 2022, the amount due to Taiyuan Changcheng
was approximately RMB20,335,000 (2021: RMB21,964,000).

The Group obtained financial assistance from Beijing Gensir, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. As at 31 December
2022, the amount due to Beijing Gensir was approximately
RMB549,000 (2021: RMB702,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group obtained financial assistance from two
connected persons (the “Connected Persons”). As at 31
December 2022, the amount due to Connected Persons was
approximately RMB709,000 (2021: RMB683,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2022, total interest charged
by Taiyuan Changcheng, Beijing Gensir and Connected Persons
was approximately RMB1,298,000 (2021: RMB817,000),
RMB16,000 (2021: RMB18,000) and RMB18,000 (2021:
RMB25,000) respectively. The directors of the Company
consider that the interest charged by Taiyuan Changcheng,
Beijing Gensir and Connected Persons are based on normal
commercial terms or better. The financial assistances and
interest expenses are exempted from connected transaction
requirements.

Bank and Other Borrowings

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had an outstanding
bank borrowing in the amount of RMB10,581,000 (2021:
RMB10,650,000) which had been renewed in December 2019.
The term of the bank borrowing has been extended to 30 June
2023.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had outstanding other
borrowings in the amount of approximately RMB58,016,000
(2021: RMB83,058,000), including non-current portion
of approximately RMB52,545,000 (2021: RMB Nil) and
current portion of approximately RMB5,471,000 (2021:
RMB93,708,000).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2022, the total assets of the Group
increased by approximately RMB2,143,000 to approximately
RMB150,648,000 as compared to approximately
RMB148,505,000 as at the end of the previous financial
period, representing an increase of approximately 1.4%.

As at 31 December 2022, the total liabilities of the
Group decreased by approximately RMB14,351,000 to
approximately RMB248,574,000 as compared to approximately
RMB262,925,000 as at the end of the previous financial
period, representing a decrease of approximately 5.46%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

As at 31 December 2022, the total equity of the
Group increased by approximately RMB16,494,000 to
approximately RMB97,926,000 as compared to approximately
RMB114,420,000 as at the end of the previous financial
period.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2022, the gearing ratio (defined as net
debt divided by total share capital plus net debt) of the Group
was approximately 178% (2021: 195%,).

Significant Investment Held

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held interests in
associates with the carrying value of RMB Nil (2021: RMB Nil).

Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries

The Group had no acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2022, certain buildings at carrying amount
of approximately RMB42,929,000 (2021: RMB44,317,000)
were pledged to secure a bank borrowing to the Group.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s right-of-use assets
located at No. 7 Dianzi Street, Demonstration Zone, Shanxi,
the PRC was pledged to secure a bank borrowing to the
Group.

As at 31 December 2022, certain plant and machinery
at carrying amount of approximately RMB Nil (2021:
RMB365,000) were pledged to secure the amount due to a
shareholder.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no contingent
liabilities.

Exposure of Fluctuation in Exchange Rates

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as
most of its business transactions, assets, and liabilities are
principally denominated in the functional currency of the
Group.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Employee Information

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had approximately 353
full-time employees. The Group remunerates its employees
based on their experience, performance and value, which they
contribute to the Group.

Additional Information Relating to the Disclaimer of
Opinion

The auditors of the Company issued disclaimer of opinion in
the independent auditors’ report relating to the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022. In view of removing the disclaimer
of opinion, the Board will formulate and consider the following
action plan:

(i) The management will continue to strengthen and
implement financial measures and operational measures
to ensure that the Group’s operation be able to recover
rapidly;

(ii) The management begins to prepare for fundraising
plans, such as equity financing and debt restructuring;
and

(i) The management discusses with shareholders to
finalize the Shareholder Loan A in the amount of
RMB60,000,000 and the Shareholder Loan B in the
amount of RMB20,000,000 as soon as practicable.

Events After the Reporting Period

Due to the impact of the epidemic, the business activities of
the Company were severely restricted during the reporting
year. As the impact of the epidemic gradually diminishes
in 2023, the Company intends to consider the following
measures to improve its financial condition that: (1) as of
April 2023, the Company has successively signed sales
orders in an amount of approximately RMB49,000,000 with
customers, and orders of approximately RMB10,000,000 are
under negotiation. If the above orders are all completed and
delivered in 2023, the operating cash flow of the Company will
be greatly improved. (2) The Company is actively preparing for
the restructuring of existing liabilities, and is also considering
raising funds through private placement, in an aim to optimise
its capital structure through a two-pronged approach, with
active efforts to promote the implementation of the technical
transformation program. Based on the proposed strategic
measures, the Company has reasons to believe that the
financial performance will show further improvement in the
foreseeable future.
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ES ESREAREBAEBZBEBESE

Executive Directors

Mr. Song Zhenglai (“Mr. ZL Song”), aged 46, holds a
college degree in accounting from the School of Economics
and Management of Changchun University. Mr. ZL Song was
appointed as an executive director and the vice-chairman of
the board of directors of the Company on 30 November 2017.
Mr. ZL Song was appointed as the chairman and a member
of the nomination committee, the compliance officer and
the authorized representative of the Company on 15 January
2020 and ceased to be the chairman and a member of the
nomination committee on 16 February 2020 and resigned as
the financial controller of the Company on 11 January 2020.

Mr. ZL Song served as the chief financial officer of Changchun
Changling Engine Company Limited from March 2002 to
September 2004, the finance director of Shenzhen Zhonghang
Night Vision Technology Limited from May 2006 to March
2009 and the general manager of Changchun Faw Automotive
Chassis Limited Company from May 2010 to January 2014.

Mr. Jiao Baoguo (“Mr. Jiao"), aged 55, graduated from the
Dalian University of Technology and holds a master's degree in
engineering. Mr. Jiao was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 26 March 2019. Mr. Jiao acted as the general
manager of the Company effective from 4 February 2019
and resigned as the general manager of the Company on 11
January 2020.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Jiao was the deputy general
manager of Taiyuan Dongshan Coal Mine and Electricity Group
Co., Limited and the chairman and general manager of Shanxi
Zhihengcheng Technology Co., Limited. Mr. Jiao is currently the
party secretary and chairman of Taiyuan Changcheng Optics
Electronics Industrial Company Limited. Mr. Jiao has won the
second prize of the Shanxi Provincial Science and Technology
Award and the Shanxi Provincial Science and Technology
“Golden Bull Award”. Mr. Jiao has led the team to obtain four
utility model patents, two software copyrights, one appearance
patent and one trademark right, and independently developed
a miniature ECG recorder.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2022
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ES ESEREAREBAEBZBEBESE

Ms. Wang Lingling (“Ms. Wang”), aged 57, holds a
bachelor’s degree in optoelectronic from the Department of
Physics of Shanxi University and a doctoral degree in material
physics and chemistry from the Changchun University of
Science and Technology. Ms. Wang was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 30 November 2017. Ms.
Wang is currently the vice general manager of technical quality
and the chief engineer of the Company.

Ms. Wang served as the craftsman in the optical fiber plant
of Taiyuan Changcheng Optoelectronics Microlight Equipment
Factory from July 1988 to December 1995, the chief of section
of Taiyuan Changcheng Optoelectronics Microlight Equipment
Factory from January 1996 to December 1998, the vice senior
of workshop of the Company from January 1999 to December
2007, the manager of quality department of the Company
from January 2008 to May 2009 and the vice general manager
of technical quality of the Company from June 2009 to the
present.

Mr. Zhao Zhi (“"Mr. Zhao"), aged 60, graduated from the
Macau University of Science and Technology and holds a
master’'s degree in business administration. Mr. Zhao was
appointed as the chairman of the board of directors, an
executive director, the chairman and a member of the
nomination committee, the compliance officer and the
authorized representative of the Company on 26 March 2019
and ceased to be the chairman of the board of directors, the
chairman and a member of the nomination committee, the
compliance officer and the authorized representative of the
Company on 15 January 2020.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Zhao was the director,
general manager, deputy general manager and party
committee member of Taiyuan Dongshan Coal Mine Co.,
Limited and the party secretary, chairman and director of
Taiyuan Dongshan Coal and Electricity Group Co., Limited.
Mr. Zhao was awarded the Model Worker of Taiyuan City in
1999 and 2005, the Outstanding Entrepreneur of Taiyuan
City in 2007, the Outstanding Entrepreneur and Business
Entrepreneur of Shanxi Province in 2008, the Supermodel
Worker and Meritorious Entrepreneur of Taiyuan City in 2010,
and the Wu Yi Labor Medal of Shanxi Province in 2011. Mr.
Zhao was elected as the representative of the 13th People’s
Congress of Taiyuan City and the representative of the 11th
Congress of Taiyuan City of the Communist Party of China. Mr.
Zhao passed away on 2 October 2022.
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ES ESREAREBAEBZBEBESE

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Yuan Guoliang (“Mr. GL Yuan”), aged 61, graduated
from the Changchun University of Science and Technology.
Mr. GL Yuan was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company on 27 May 2011. Mr. GL Yuan was appointed
as a member of the audit committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company on 30 November
2017. Mr. GL Yuan served as the deputy director of the
Strategic Policy Committee of the Company from May 2011 to
November 2017.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. GL Yuan worked in Shanxi
Jinxi Machines Factory from August 1985 to April 1990 and
worked with Taiyuan City Economic Committee from May
1990 to July 2006.

Based on the interests filing disclosure, as at the latest
practicable date, Mr. GL Yuan holds 3,645,000 H shares and
his spouse holds 250,000 H shares of the Company.

Mr. Wu Bo (“"Mr. Wu"”), aged 56, holds economic
management major of Heilongjiang Institute of Commerce. Mr.
Wu was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company
on 30 November 2017 and the chairman of the board of
directors, the chairman and a member of the nomination
committee of the Company on 16 February 2020.

From February 2008 to the present, Mr. Wu has been the
executive director and general manager of Shenzhen Ronger
Optics & Electronic Technology Development Company
Limited, the supervisor of Kunming Ronger Optic & Electronic
Technology Development Company Limited and the chairman
of the board of directors of Yunnan Zhongkewei Optical
Instruments Company Limited. Mr. Wu served as the general
manager of Russia Zhenhui Company from April 1997 to
August 2007.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2022
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ES ESEREAREBAEBZBEBESE

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Yongfeng (“Mr. Xu”) was appointed as an
independent non-executive director, the chairman and
a member of the audit committee, a member of the
remuneration committee and a member of the nomination
committee of the Company on 26 March 2019.

Mr. Xu, aged 50, graduated from Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law with a bachelor’s degree in accounting.
Mr. Xu obtained the Chinese Certified Public Accountant’s
Licensing Certificate, the Chinese Certified Tax Agent's
Licensing Certificate and the Chinese Legal Licensing
Certificate. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Xu worked
in the accounting department of China Construction Bank,
served as the finance manager in Shenzhen Xinnan Industrial
Development Co., Limited, the finance manager in Shenzhen
Rihao Shopping Plaza Co., Limited and the senior audit
manager in Zhonglian Certified Public Accountants Co.,
Limited.

Mr. Wang Weizhong (“Mr. Wang"”) was appointed as an
independent non-executive director and a member of the
nomination committee of the Company on 26 March 2019.

Mr. Wang, aged 40, graduated from the Vocational and
Technical College of Shanxi University with a major in
computer networking and a college degree. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Wang worked in the marketing department of
Taiyuan Aode Software Engineering Co., Limited, served as the
manager in Jinzhong Sina Information Technology Co., Limited
and the manager in Zhangzhou Hexintong Technology Co.,
Limited.

Mr. Rong Fei (“Mr. Rong"”) was appointed as an independent
non-executive director, a member of the audit committee and
the chairman and a member of the remuneration committee of
the Company on 26 March 2019.

Mr. Rong, aged 35, graduated from Shanxi University
of Finance and Economics with a bachelor’s degree in
international economics and trade. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Rong worked in the administrative affairs
department of Huadian Shanxi Energy Co., Limited and served
as the officer of the general management department of
Shanxi Hetai Real Estate Development Co., Limited.
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ES ESREAREBAEBZBEBESE

Supervisors

Ms. Han Xiaoou (“Ms. Han"), aged 45, graduated from
Shanxi Normal University with a major in Chinese language
and holds a postgraduate degree of political science. Ms. Han
was appointed as a supervisor of the Company since 27 May
2011. Ms. Han is currently the chairman of the labor union
and the secretary of the Communist Youth League Committee
of Taiyuan Changcheng Optics Electronics Industrial Company
Limited. Ms. Han has been working in the Company since
graduating from Shanxi Normal University in 1999 and is
currently the chairman of the supervisor committee and the
senior of the executive office of the Company.

Mr. Dong Yonghong (“Mr. Dong”), aged 54, graduated
from Shanxi University majoring in economic management.
Mr. Dong was appointed as a supervisor of the Company on
30 November 2017. Mr. Dong has been the project manager
of the research and development centre of the Company since
February 2006.

Mr. Song Zhenbao (“Mr. ZB Song”), aged 52, holds
a master's degree from lJilin University. Mr. ZB Song was
appointed as a supervisor of the Company on 30 November
2017. Mr. ZB Song is currently a business management
consultant of Changchun Huagingyuan Technology Company
Limited. Mr. ZB Song was the vice president of Changchun
Yongxin Pharmaceutical from 2006 to 2008 and the chief
consultant of UFIDA Software Company Limited, Jilin Branch
from 2009 to 2011.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ES ESEREAREBAEBZBEBESE

Senior Management

Mr. Fan Jiming ("Mr. Fan"”), aged 61, graduated from Shanxi
Provincial Electronics School. Mr. Fan currently serves as the
director of infrastructure and safety of the Company. Mr. Fan
served as the production manager, the commander of technical
reform department, the manager of purchasing & supply and
the deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. Fan has
been the deputy general manager of Taiyuan Changcheng
Optics Electronics Industrial Company Limited since 1999.

Mr. Qian Yun (“Mr. Qian”), aged 59, graduated from the
Mechanical Department of Taiyuan Polytechnic University. Mr.
Qian is a senior engineer. Mr. Qian currently serves as the
director of enterprise planning of the Company. Prior to joining
the Company in 2005, Mr. Qian served as the deputy general
manager of the Taiyuan Sanjin Aluminum Company Limited.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

The board of directors of the Company submit the annual
report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022.

Principal Activities

The Company continued to be principally engaged in design,
research, development, manufacture, and sale of image
transmission fibre optic products. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in the note (18) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Segment Information

Details of the Group's segmental information for the year
ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the note (8) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 are set out in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements. The board of directors of the Company does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the audited results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years is set out
in the section headed “Five-year Financial Summary” of this
annual report.

Business Review and Financial Review

Details of business review and financial review of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements and note (31)
to the consolidated financial statements. As at 31 December
2022, the Company had reserves in the amount to RMB
Nil (2021: RMB Nil) available for dividend distribution to
shareholders.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2022
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Share Capital

There were no movements in the Company’s issued share
capital during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of Shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of its listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company and there is no restriction
against such rights under the Companies Law (Revised) in the
PRC.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in the note (16) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Staff Retirement Plans

All members of staff are entitled to participate in the public
welfare fund, which was set up for the purpose of ensuring
that the participating employees will have sufficient means
to support their living after retirement. For the year ended
31 December 2022, the Group reported employer's pension
scheme contributions of approximately RMB5,072,000 (2021:
RMB5,544,000).

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers accounted for
approximately 28.61% (2021: 21%) and 90% (2021: 77%) of
the Group’s total turnover respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s
largest supplier and the five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 30% (2021: 43%) and 62% (2021: 96%) of the
Group's total purchases respectively.

To the knowledge of the directors of the Company, none of
the directors or supervisors of the Company or their respective
associates or any of the shareholders of the Company who
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had
any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.
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Connected Transactions and Financial Assistance from
Taiyuan Changcheng, Beijing Gensir and Connected
Persons

The Group obtained financial assistance from Taiyuan
Changcheng, a substantial shareholder of the Company. As at
31 December 2022, the amount due to Taiyuan Changcheng
was approximately RMB20,335,000 (2021: RMB21,964,000).

The Group obtained financial assistance from Beijing Gensir, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. As at 31 December
2022, the amount due to Beijing Gensir was approximately
RMB549,000 (2021: RMB702,000).

The Group obtained financial assistance from two
connected persons (the “Connected Persons”). As at 31
December 2022, the amount due to Connected Persons was
approximately RMB709,000 (2021: RMB683,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2022, total interest charged
by Taiyuan Changcheng, Beijing Gensir and Connected Persons
was approximately RMB1,298,000 (2021: RMB817,000),
RMB16,000 (2021: RMB18,000) and RMB18,000 (2021:
RMB25,000) respectively. The directors of the Company
consider that the interest charged by Taiyuan Changcheng,
Beijing Gensir and Connected Persons are based on normal
commercial terms or better. The financial assistances and
interest expenses are exempted from connected transaction
requirements.

Directors

The directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Song Zhenglai (Vice-Chairman)

Mr. Jiao Baoguo

Ms. Wang Lingling

Mr. Zhao Zhi (passed away on 2 October 2022)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuan Guoliang
Mr. Wu Bo (Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xu Yongfeng
Mr. Wang Weizhong
Mr. Rong Fei

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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The directors of the Company are appointed for a term of
three years, and are subject to re-election for appointment
by shareholders at the general meeting by the end of each
of three-year period. Given that the nomination process of
candidates for directors of the new session of the Board
has not been completed due to the specific response to the
epidemic, the re-election of the Board of the Company will be
postponed, in order to maintain the continuity of the work of
the Board. The terms of office of the committees under the
fourth session of the Board of the Company will be extended
accordingly. Before the completion of the re-election of the
Board, all members of the fourth session of the Board of
the Company will continue to perform corresponding duties
pursuant to the relevant requirements under relevant laws
and regulations, the GEM Listing Rules and the Articles of
Association of the Company.

Supervisors

The supervisors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report were:

Ms. Han Xiaoou (Chairman)
Mr. Dong Yonghong
Mr. Song Zhenbao

The supervisors of the Company are appointed for a term of
three years, and are subject to re-election for appointment
by shareholders at the general meeting by the end of each
of three-year period. Given that the nomination process
of candidates for supervisors of the new session of the
supervisor committee has not been completed due to the
specific response to the epidemic, the re-election of the
supervisor committee of the Company will be postponed, in
order to maintain the continuity of the work of the supervisor
committee. Before the completion of the re-election of the
supervisor committee, all members of the fourth session of the
supervisor committee of the Company will continue to perform
corresponding duties pursuant to the relevant requirements
under relevant laws and regulations, the GEM Listing Rules and
the Articles of Association of the Company.

Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management

Biographical details of directors, supervisors and senior
management are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of
this annual report.
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Emoluments of The Directors and Supervisors and The
Five Highest Paid Individuals

Details of the directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments and the
five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in the
note (13) to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Service Agreements

Save as disclosed, none of the directors and supervisors of the
Company has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interests or Short Positions
in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debenture of the
Company

As at 31 December 2022, the directors or supervisors of the
Company who had interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

EEREECHEREEREHAL

EENESFCIHERAKRERIARSHA
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Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by SINSTIZAEM /BRI E NN 7] NPT 2 #E
directors of listed issuers as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the mIORBUWT
GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:
Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of RERGRGRIEBRGZHFE
the Company
Approximate
Approximate Approximate percentage of
percentage of percentage of holding of the
Number and type holding of the holding of the total share
Nature and capacity in the of domestic domestic shares of  H shares of the capital of the
Name shareholding of the Company shares/H shares the Company* Company* Company*
BEALR BEART BEXLTH
RER,/HE RERZ HER 2 B4 N} A
#E BEALNAREZMERSHD SEREE A BAt* R A
Yuan Guoliang Personal Interest and Family Interest 3,895,000 (Note 1) - 3.54% 1.26%
REAR EAESE LK kiEs 3,895,008 (HizE1)
* Shareholding percentages have been rounded to the nearest * HEBDEE SRR 2 W E/ NS
two decimal places. 7 o
Note: Btk -
1. According to the interests filing disclosure, 3,645,000 H shares 1. AR5 7 a5 B IR PT 3% 5% + 3,645,0000% HAR
are registered in the name of Yuan Guoliang and 250,000 H N =B R &% 55 K&250,0000% HA% LA &
shares are registered in the name of his spouse. iEEEEL -

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
directors or supervisors of the Company nor their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required
standard of dealings by directors of listed issuers as referred to
in Rules 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2022, so far as the directors of the
Company are aware, persons other than the directors or
supervisors of the Company who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO, were as follows:
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7B 5 A GZ 60 BT i & 5e i 2 Al 4 2 2k
KA BB EGEM_E T R Bl 555 4616 BT it
B TAEZTETRSHNTIREMAN
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BRI RBRES KB EIRIZE3361KFT
GEZERMAR BRARRESHES
SN R DB RO KEER D PR ES
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Approximate
Approximate Approximate percentage of
percentage of percentage of holding of the
Number and type holding of the holding of the total share
Nature and capacity in the of domestic domestic shares of  H shares of the capital of the
Name shareholding of the Company shares/H shares the Company* Company* Company*
BELRTA BEARA BEALT
RER /HER nERZ HER 2 B4 Rxag
£ REALAREZMERSH SERER A Bt R A
Domestic Shares:
RER:
Zhang Shao Hui Interest in a controlled corporation 82,200,000 41.34% - 26.61%
KB SEHNRER domestic shares
(Note 1)
WER (M)
Beijing Gensir Registered and beneficial owner of 82,200,000 41.34% - 26.61%
Venture Capital the domestic shares and interest  domestic shares
Management Limited in a controlled corporation (Note 2)
GTRREEIEREAEE RARZECIRERAGARRE MER(MF2)
ARAA HARZER
Taiyuan Changcheng Registered and beneficial owner of 80,160,000 40.31% - 25.95%
Optics Electronics the domestic shares domestic shares
Industrial Company NERBLREGHAA NEK

Limited
AETRAXETFER
RN

WA RBMEEMROBRD A
CRCOCFFR
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Approximate

Approximate

Approximate
percentage of

percentage of percentage of holding of the
Number and type holding of the holding of the total share
Nature and capacity in the of domestic domestic shares of  H shares of the capital of the
Name shareholding of the Company shares/H shares the Company* Company* Company*
RERLT BEALR BEALR
RER/HE nERZ HER 2 B4 e}
£ BEALRREZHERSH HERER R A BA* R A
Beijing Yuankang Registered and beneficial owner of 34,000,000 17.10% - 11.01%
Technology Co., Ltd. the domestic shares domestic shares
TRRERRARAR  AERZBZRERERA NER
Jia Yaotian Interest in a controlled corporation 34,000,000 17.10% - 11.01%
EZX g N ol domestic shares
(Note 3)
RERK (M3E3)
Taiyuan Tanghai Registered and beneficial owner of 24,900,000 12.52% - 8.06%
Automatic Control the domestic shares domestic shares
Company Limited NERBEREGHEBA NER
ARESEDEHER
AR
Liu Jiang Interest in a controlled Corporation 24,900,000 12.52% - 8.06%
Ll REHRA ER domestic shares
(Note 4)
RERK (MizE)
Qiu Gui Qin Family interest 24,900,000 12.52% - 8.06%
Brd R RER domestic shares
(Note 4)
WERK (Mz4)

* Shareholding percentages have been rounded to the nearest * ERESH AR ERE I ZWENE
two decimal places.

Note:

fiL

GET

1. According to the interests filing disclosure, part of these domestic 1. BIEERPARAFEE FOUHERNER

shares (57,300,000 domestic shares) is registered in the name of
Beijing Gensir, a company whose issued shares were reportedly
registered as to 100% in the name of Zhang Shao Hui. As Zhang
Shao Hui is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one third
or more of the voting power at the general meeting of Beijing
Gensir, for the purpose of the SFO, Zhang Shao Hui is deemed to
be interested in the entire 57,300,000 domestic shares held by
Beijing Gensir.
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According to the interests filing disclosure, the rest of these
domestic shares (24,900,000 domestic shares) are registered
in the name of Taiyuan Tanghai Automatic Control Company
Limited (“Taiyuan Tanghai”), a company whose issued shares
were reportedly registered as to approximately 36.37% in the
name of Beijing Gensir. As Beijing Gensir is entitled to exercise or
control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at
the general meeting of Taiyuan Tanghai, for the purpose of the
SFO, Zhang Shao Hui is deemed to be interested in the entire
24,900,000 domestic shares held by Taiyuan Tanghai.

2. According to the interests filing disclosure, part of these domestic
shares (57,300,000 domestic shares) is registered in the name of
Beijing Gensir, a company whose issued shares were reportedly
registered as to 100% in the name of Zhang Shao Hui. The
rest of these domestic shares (24,900,000 domestic shares) are
registered in the name of Taiyuan Tanghai, a company whose
issued shares were reportedly registered as to approximately
36.37% in the name of Beijing Gensir. As Beijing Gensir is entitled
to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the
voting power at the general meeting of Taiyuan Tanghai, for the
purpose of the SFO, Beijing Gensir is deemed to be interested in
the entire 57,300,000 domestic shares held by Beijing Gensir and
24,900,000 domestic shares held by Taiyuan Tanghai.

3. According to the interests filing disclosure, these 34,000,000
domestic shares are registered in the name of Beijing Yuankang
Technology Co., Ltd.dt RREREBR QA (“Beijing
Yuankang”), a company whose issued shares were reportedly
registered as to approximately 51% in the name of Jia Yaotian.
As Jia Yaotian is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of
one third or more of the voting power at the general meeting
of Beijing Yuankang, for the purpose of the SFO, Jia Yaotian is
deemed to be interested in the entire 34,000,000 domestic shares
held by Beijing Yuankang.

4. According to the interests filing disclosure, these 24,900,000
domestic shares are registered in the name of Taiyuan Tanghai,
a company whose issued shares were reportedly registered as to
approximately 47.29% in the name of Liu lJiang. As Liu Jiang is
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of
the voting power at the general meeting of Taiyuan Tanghai, for
the propose of the SFO, Liu Jiang is deemed to be interested in
the entire 24,900,000 domestic shares held by Taiyuan Tanghai.
Qiu Gui Qin, as the spouse of Liu lJiang, is taken to be interested
in the shares held by Liu Jiang by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, the directors of the Company are not
aware of other person who, as at 31 December 2022, had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.
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Share Option Scheme
The Group do not have share option scheme.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire H Shares

During the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the
directors or supervisors of the Company was granted options
to subscribe for H shares of the Company. As at 31 December
2022, none of the directors or supervisors of the Company nor
their spouses or children under the age of 18 had any right to
acquire H shares of the Company or had exercised any such
right during the year.

Contracts of Significance

Save as disclosed, no contracts of significance in relation to
the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director or a supervisor
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the year ended 31 December 2022 or at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group was entered into or existed during the year.

Competing Interests

The directors of the Company believe that none of the directors,
supervisors and management shareholders of the Company nor
any of their respective associates had an interest in a business
which competes or may compete with the business of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Mr. Wu Bo, a Director of the Group, is the equity owner of
Shenzhen Ronger Optics & Electronic Technology Development
Company Limited and Rongsheng Optoelectronics (Hong
Kong) Co., Ltd. (BB X E (HE)BMRAA), of which the
sales with the Company as at 31 December 2022 amounting
to approximately RMB415,000.

The Group obtained financial assistance from Shenzhen
Kenman CFEIIIELEE ), a substantial shareholder of Beijing
Gensir, a substantial shareholder of the Company, and as
at 31 December 2022, the principal and interest due to
Shenzhen Kenman OFYIISLEA ) amounted to approximately
RMB6,995,000 (12% per annum).

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Confirmation of Independence by Independent Non-
Executive Directors

The Company has received the annual confirmation
of independence from all the incumbent independent
nonexecutive directors of the Company pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considered them to be
independent.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors of the Company, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held
by the public as at the date of this report.

Audit Committee

In compliance with Rules 5.28 and 5.33 of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Company has established an audit committee. The
primary duties of the audit committee are to review and to
provide supervision over the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control system of the Group. The
audit committee comprises two independent non-executive
directors and one non-executive director, namely Mr. Xu
Yongfeng, Mr. Rong Fei and Mr. Yuan Guoliang respectively.
Mr. Xu Yongfeng has been appointed as the chairman of
the audit committee. The audit committee has reviewed the
audited annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022.

Auditors

CCTH CPA Limited (the "CCTH"”) was re-appointed as
the auditor of the Group by the board of directors of the
Company. The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022 were audited by CCTH whose term
of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The audit committee has recommended to the board
of directors of the Company that CCTH be re-appointed as
the auditors of the Group at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance of the Group are set out
in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

On behalf of the board of directors

Wu Bo
Chairman

Taiyuan City, Shanxi Province, the PRC
19 May 2023
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CEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors of the Company recognizes the
importance of corporate governance practice of a listed
company and is committed to adopting the standards of
corporate governance.

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) contained
in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules. In the opinion of the
Board of the Company, the Company has complied with the
code provisions except for no arrangement of insurance cover
in respect of legal action against the directors of the Company
(code provisions C.1.8) due to insufficient budget provided.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings
as set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 (the “Required Standard
of Dealings”) of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by directors. Having
made specific enquiries of all directors of the Company, the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the
Required Standard of Dealings regarding securities transactions
by directors for the year ended 31 December 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors of the Company has the collective
responsibility for leadership of, and for promoting the success
of, the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The board of directors of the Company currently comprises
eight directors, of which three are executive directors, namely
Mr. Song Zhenglai, Mr. Jiao Baoguo and Ms. Wang Lingling;
two non-executive directors, namely Mr. Yuan Guoliang and
Mr. Wu Bo and three independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Xu Yongfeng, Mr. Wang Weizhong and Mr. Rong
Fei.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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The directors of the Company are appointed for a term of
three years, and are subject to re-election for appointment
by shareholders at the general meeting by the end of each
of three-year period. Given that the nomination process of
candidates for directors of the new session of the Board
has not been completed due to the specific response to the
epidemic, the re-election of the Board of the Company will be
postponed, in order to maintain the continuity of the work of
the Board. The terms of office of the committees under the
fourth session of the Board of the Company will be extended
accordingly. Before the completion of the re-election of the
Board, all members of the fourth session of the Board of
the Company will continue to perform corresponding duties
pursuant to the relevant requirements under relevant laws
and regulations, the GEM Listing Rules and the Articles of
Association of the Company.

The Company has received the annual confirmation
of independence from all the incumbent independent
nonexecutive directors of the Company pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considered them to be
independent.

To the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the
members of the board of directors of the Company have
no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships among themselves and between the chairman
and the chief executive officer.

BOARD MEETING

The board of directors of the Company met seven times during
the year ended 31 December 2022 and the attendance of the
members is as follows:

TREREE
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Number of
attendance
Name of director BEEpnR H E X
Mr. Zhao Zhi (passed away on HELEE(RZTZZ
2 October 2022) T A= Bitt) 5/7
Mr. Song Zhenglai REBUREE 717
Mr. Jiao Baoguo EREISEAE 717
Ms. Wang Lingling FrREXZ T 717
Mr. Yuan Guoliang REREE 717
Mr. Wu Bo RRFHE 717
Mr. Xu Yongfeng STk SE A 777
Mr. Wang Weizhong FRIBSEE 717
Mr. Rong Fei BRI E 717
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DIRECTOR’S CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

The directors of the Company should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution into
the board of directors of the Company remains informed and
relevant. The individual training record of each director of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2022 is as
follows:

EEFEARIRER

RAREFHELHABEEXRE IEHE
I T E A R A MR EE
BEATARAARESSELTAFTEY
BERfcEZE—E_—_F+=-_A=+—HI
FE -ARAIESERIEI 2@ AL
T

Updating on the
business, operations
and corporate
governance matter

FEER KER

TEEREEZ

Name of director EEgE R ER

Mr. Zhao Zhi (passed away on HELEE(RZE-—F

2 October 2022) +A - Bit) v
Mr. Song Zhenglai REBOREHE v/
Mr. Jiao Baoguo EREEE v/
Ms. Wang Lingling FrRLt 4
Mr. Yuan Guoliang REREE v
Mr. Wu Bo REFE 4
Mr. Xu Yongfeng STk R SE A 4
Mr. Wang Weizhong FREREE 4
Mr. Rong Fei BRI E v

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse the board of directors and sees increasing
diversity at the board of directors’ level as an essential
element in maintaining the Company’'s competitive advantage.
The Company has adopted the board diversity policy (the
“Policy”). The nomination committee has reviewed the
Policy during the year ended 31 December 2022 and where
appropriate, recommends revision to the board of directors of
the Company for consideration and approval.
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The factors listed below would be used as reference by
the nomination committee in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate: qualification and experience, character
and integrity, accomplishment and reputation, relevant skills
and experience to contribute to the board of directors,
commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest,
diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Zhao Zhi resigned as the chairman of the board of
directors of the Company on 15 January 2020. Mr. Wu Bo was
appointed as the chairman of the board of directors of the
Company on 16 February 2020.

Mr. Jiao Baoguo resigned as the general manager of the
Company on 11 January 2020. Following the resignation of
Mr. Jiao Baoguo as the general manager of the Company, Mr.
Zhao Taibing was appointed as the general manager of the
Company with effect from 15 January 2020.

The chairman of the board of directors of the Company
provides leadership for the board of directors of the Company
and ensures that the board of directors of the Company works
effectively and performs its responsibilities, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed by it in a timely manner.
The chief executive officer is responsible for the management
of the business of the Group, implementation of the policies
and objectives set out by the board of directors of the
Company and is accountable to the board of directors of the
Company for the overall operation of the Group.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has set up three committees including audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee, each committee with its specific terms of reference
as set out in the CG Code.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with written
terms of reference in consistence with the CG Code. The audit
committee comprises two independent non-executive directors
and one non-executive director, namely Mr. Xu Yongfeng,
Mr. Rong Fei and Mr. Yuan Guoliang. Mr. Xu Yongfeng was
appointed as the chairman of the audit committee.

The primary duties of the audit committee include (i) to
consider the appointment of external auditors and any
questions of resignation or dismissal; (i) to review financial
information and (iii) to oversight of the financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control system. The
audit committee discharged its duties by reviewing the
financial matters, quarterly, interim and annual financial
reports and financial statements during the year ended 31
December 2022. The audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022 have been reviewed by
the audit committee.

The audit committee met five times during the year ended
31 December 2022 and the attendance of the members is as
follows:

BEREES

ARADRUBEZZEG HEMBER
ENetXE AT ERZEEAMEA
B IEAITERFFKESLE  RRFTEER
—HZFMITEETRER KM - 7k
TEEEZIRERZEREE-

BEREZEGZTEREBE: ()ZEINE
B ZERAFRNERAE R EM
R ¢ (i) B B 7 B Rt R (i) BS B B T 3
A5 RRERMAIEZRZF - HE-Z
——HF+-_A=+—HIFE BZRZELE
SERTERE RREBEHVUBER =
B HEHRFERBRE AT BHRE -
ERZEeCEMEE T -__F+=H
=+ —HBUEFEEEZRBRE-

HE T -_—_F#+-_A=+—HItFE-
EREZEECRITARES REZHE
BRI

Number of
Attendance
Name of member REHA HERE
Mr. Xu Yongfeng FFEkE S E 5/5
Mr. Rong Fei BRI E 5/5
Mr. Yuan Guoliang REREE 5/5

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee with
written terms of reference in consistence with the CG Code.
The remuneration committee comprises two independent
nonexecutive directors and one non-executive director, namely
Mr. Rong Fei, Mr. Xu Yongfeng and Mr. Yuan Guoliang. Mr.
Rong Fei was appointed as the chairman of the remuneration
committee.
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The primary duties of the remuneration committee include
(i) to make recommendation to the board of directors on the
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy and
(i) to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals. The remuneration reviewed the remuneration policy
of all directors’ and senior management during the year ended
31 December 2022.

The remuneration committee met one time during the year
ended 31 December 2022 and the attendance of the members
is as follows:

TREREE
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Number of
attendance
Name of member RE MR R
Mr. Rong Fei BmEE A
Xu Yongfeng B i 11
Yuan Guoliang REREE 1/1

Remuneration paid to members of senior management
(including directors and supervisors) fell within the following
bands:

XNEREEEAE (BREFLEF)H
FHMAF T EE :

Number of

Individuals

AE

RMB 120,000 or below ANER#120,0007T8 LA T 12
RMB120,001 —= RMB300,000 AR ®120,00170— AR %300,0007T 3

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee
with written terms of reference in consistence with the CG
Code. The nomination committee comprises the chairman of
the board of directors and two independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Wu Bo, Mr. Xu Yongfeng and Mr. Wang
Weizhong. Mr. Wu Bo was appointed as the chairman of the
nomination committee.
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The primary duties of the nomination committee include (i) to
review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the board of directors; (ii) to
identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the board of directors and (iii) to make recommendations to
the board of directors on the appointment or re-appointment
of directors. The nomination reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the board of directors of the Company and
the board diversity policy during the year ended 31 December
2022.

The nomination committee met one time during the year
ended 31 December 2022 and the attendance of the members
is as follows:

REZEGZIBREEE: (BINESF
SHRE - ABMAK (B ME R
KR mE) (VWEEBHREERAEE
BEEERBZALRNVAEZTZTHEM
ZIRNEFERIEZ -BE_T_—F
T-A=t—HLESE REZZESCHE
BIARRESSNRE  ABERAER AR
EEZ2Z K-

BE T+ _A=t—BHLFE"
REZEGURIT—AEH KEZHE
BRmT:

Number of
attendance
Name of member REHA HERE
Mr. Wu Bo REFHE A
Mr. Xu Yongfeng kR S A 171
Mr. Wang Weizhong FEBEE 1/1
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The board of directors of the Company is responsible for
presenting annual; interim; and quarterly reports, price
sensitive announcements and other disclosure requirements
under the GEM Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The audit committee reviewed the financial matters, quarterly,
interim and annual financial reports and financial statements
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022.

The respective responsibilities of the directors of the Company
and the auditors for preparing financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditors’ Report” of this annual
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The board of directors of the Company acknowledged
its responsibility for the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems. In light of the size
and scale of the Group's businesses, the board of directors
of the Company is delegated with the responsibility for
overseeing the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group on an ongoing basis and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Therefore, the Group currently do not have
an internal audit department. During the revision of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, the
board of directors of the Company identified that the Group
has material uncertainty in going concern.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had net current liabilities
and net liabilities of approximately RMB140,403,000 and
RMB97,926,000 respectively. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant
doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and therefore the Group may be unable to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.
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The directors of the Company have been taking active steps
to improve the liquidity position of the Group. These steps
include:(i) at the capital level, introducing new strategic
investors into the private placement of new shares/bonds,
and negotiating and implementing a debt restructuring plan
with shareholders, borrowers and financial institutions; (ii)
at the operational level, revitalizing the long-term assets and
planning to lease out the properties temporarily not used
in the Company’s business operations, so as to increase the
property income; developing new products for extending
the downstream of the industrial chain and strengthening
the existing sales forces and introducing more capable
strategic sales agencies; and taking the advantage of the
technological advantages accumulated by the Company in the
field of military products to expand into the field of civilian
products and increase new customers and income sources;
and (iii) in respect of liabilities, negotiating and implementing
interest reduction/exemption program with shareholders and
borrowers and seeking financial support from shareholders and
borrowers.

Provided that these measures can successfully improve the
liquidity position of the Group, the directors of the Company
are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, the financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis. Should the Group be
unable to operate as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to write down the value of assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and
liabilities as current assets and liabilities. The effect of these
adjustments has not been reflected in the financial statements.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The external auditors provide services to the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2022. The remuneration of the
external auditors for the provision of audit service for the year
under review is RMB550,000 and the provision of non-audit
services is RMB Nil.
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AUDITORS

In 2022, CCTH has been re-appointed as the auditors of the
Group. The account for the year ended 31 December 2022
was audited by CCTH whose term of office will expire upon
the forthcoming annual general meeting. The audit committee
has recommended to the board of directors of the Company
that CCTH be re-appointed as the auditor of the Group at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Company Secretary

Ms. Fong Yip Ha, Angela of SBA Stone Forest Limited, an
external service provider, has been engaged by the Company
as the company secretary and an authorized representative
with effect from 21 June 2021 in replacement of Ms. Han Lei.

Her primary contact person at the Company is Ms. Guo
Weiwei, secretary of the board of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Ms. Fong has
complied with taking no less than 15 hours of the relevant
professional training requirement under Rule 5.15 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting and
putting forward proposal at shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to article 53 of the articles of association of the
Company, an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM") be
convened on the written requisition of shareholder holding
more than 10% (including 10%) of the voting shares issued by
the Company. When the board of directors receives the written
requisition, the board of directors shall convene an EGM within
two months.
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Pursuant to article 73 of the articles of association of the
Company, if shareholders request to convene an EGM or
a class meeting of shareholders, the following procedures
should be followed: an EGM may be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more shareholders of the Company
holding more than 10% of the paid up capital of the Company
which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company (the “Requisitionists”). Such written requisition
must specify the resolution(s) to be considered in the EGM
and must be signed by the Requisitionists and deposited at
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
or, in the event the Company ceases to have such principal
office, the registered office of the Company. Shareholders
should follow the requirements and procedures as set out in
such article for convening an EGM. If the board of directors of
the Company does not convene the EGM within 30 days from
the receipt of such requisition, the Requisitionists are entitled
to convene the EGM themselves within four months after the
board of directors of the Company received their requisition at
the Company’s expense.

ENQUIRIES PUT TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries or requests in
respect of their rights to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong or by email to ccoegw1@126.com, for
the attention of the secretary of the board of directors of the
Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company establishes different communication channels
with investors to update the latest business development and
financial performance including the publication of quarterly,
interim and annual reports, notices, announcements and
circulars on the GEM website and the Company’s website in
order to maintain a high level of transparency, and to ensure
there is no selective disclosure of inside information.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2022

RIEARREBERMAETIF BKRE
KARBEHRRASRERRIRREH
JEERBTINIE /P 138 : RIS IR R K& A
ERA/NCIES SNl EoE MR DA NN 23
REERROARNRBAD 2T ALBRK
AREOERMAA LR (T28A ) REH
EmEFmAaR -AHEE2FLAINN
B R ARG LS TEEBHNRZER L E
VERZBFARBLGFERARRNEL
MEBZXRMH (WARRTBREZE
EWEg AARAREMMBER) R
fEE T AR AN RIFT A B B FERFFAUR X
ENREMEN - HARFEFTGRER
WEZ2HE B R =T HRE LB REGER
BRRAGHEMN BM2FABERALRF
EETWHRENZ2FRUBANBTA
PR IRR RS EMEARAIEE-

OEEERHESR
RRAIBEBEFRERENNERMERKEK
FEEARANNBAEETELEMIYLERE
2 3K 2 ccoegww 1@126.com » W A B
NEEETWE-

REEBRZ
RAREEEEZEITROBARE  UE
T RMEBERRVBERIR  BERGEM
WL AR RRUETREE PR FER
HoBE RERBR UGEFSEER
BERRBEREHEEANBHEE -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(the "ESG Report”) of Shanxi Changcheng Microlight
Equipment Co. Ltd. (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group”), for the period from
1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022 (the “Reporting
Period").

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The ESG Report presents policies, the management
systems, the performance and plans of the Group’s major
business segments related to the material environmental
and social issues. It is prepared pursuant to the “comply
or explain” provisions of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the "ESG Guide”) under
Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on (the “Listing Rules”) of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
corporate governance is disclosed separately in the
Corporate Governance Report as set out in the annual
report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2022 published on 19 May 2023.

The contents of the ESG Report are determined in
accordance with a set of systematic procedures, which
include identifying and prioritising various stakeholders,
determining and prioritising the materiality and key
topics related to environmental and social issues,
defining the reporting scope and boundary, collecting
relevant materials, compiling data based on the
required information, and conducting analysis of
relevant information. On this basis, the Company has
made quantifiable disclosures on the key performance
metrics, analysis and comparison of data, together with
comprehensive reporting on the ESG performance.

The information in the ESG Report was gathered
through the collection of internal policies of different
subsidiaries of the Group, the historic data of the ESG
practices in the Group, the feedback from various
stakeholder groups via online surveys and data analysis
based on the numeric information submitted by
different subsidiaries of the Group. All information
is prepared and published based on existing policies,
practices and official documents in an accurate, genuine
and transparent manner based on the reporting
principles of “materiality”, “quantitative”, “balance”,
and “consistency”.
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BRRE HERERBRKE

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

B &% = A
Materiality

BZ2HERE

Quantitative

E1RE

Balance

R A

Consistency

— IR

Key stakeholders and their ESG concerns have been identified
during the preparation of the report, and targeted disclosures
have been made in the report based on the relative importance
of their concerns.
RFECEREERPERFEEN AT R EHBIHESGH
RBCOUWRBAMIZRENENHEZRE ERAREPMEIY
M B

This report presents quantitative environmental and social KPIs
and previous information for comparison when used. The criteria,
methodologies, references and conversion factors used for
calculating the KPIs mainly refer to the ESG Guide.
RFEFNIHENNRFE N SEARETIEZASBEER - A
BRECARSETLER BEAZRREMIEENEE 75 2
ENEBERTIZL2HRT L hEAREES -

This report complies with the principle of balance to present
the current performance and management of the Group in ESG
in an objective manner.

AREBREFERA EHE2HAEBENESGRE L ER IR

Unless otherwise indicated, no major adjustments have been
made to the disclosure scope in this report as compared
with that in the previous ESG Reports of the Group, with the
consistent statistical approaches adopted.
BrZINRIERRIN AR ERH A EEEFESGRERBEDEL
BEAFHE BEA-—BOBRESRA A

This report is available on the website of the Company
(www.sxccoe.com) and the news website of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited (www.hkexnews.hk).

Il. REPORTING BOUNDARY & BOARD
RESPONSIBILITY

ABOUT THE GROUP

The business scope of the Group mainly covers: optical
fiber components such as optical fiber face plates,
inverters and microchannel plates, as well as the
production, sales, research, development of night vision
components and their technical consultation as well as
import and export operations; leasing of self-owned
properties; and property management services.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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BOARD RESPONSIBILITY

The Group attaches great importance to the environmental,
social and governance (ESG) management, and has
developed a systematic ESG governance structure
concerning those charged with governance, management
and executives. As the supreme responsible and decision-
making body of the ESG management system, the Board,
with the assistance of the Audit Committee, takes full
charge of supervision and management of the ESG issues,
and is also responsible for overseeing and coordinating the
management of ESG-related risks, holding a meeting at
least once a year to discuss important ESG issues.

The Group regularly performs materiality assessment
on environmental, social and governance issues. The
specific process and results of the assessment are
detailed in the subsection headed “ESG Strategy” of the
annual ESG report and subject to review by the Board.
The Board of the Group has assessed the potential
impact and opportunities of ESG issues on its overall
strategy, and reviewed the materiality assessment results
of ESG issues. The Board has understood the ESG-
related issues of the Group and confirmed the current
ESG-related management policies and ESG management
concepts. The details of the important ESG topics of
the Group concerning responsible management, smart
connectivity, green development and harmonious
ecology, have been disclosed in this report.

REPORTING SCOPE

This is the Environment, Social and Governance Report
of the Group, which highlights its overall performance
in the environmental, social and governance (the
“ESG") aspects, with disclosure reference made to the
ESG Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report covers the
overall performance of the Group’s business operations
in the PRC for the period from 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2022 in major environmental and social
areas, including headquarters offices and production
facilities.
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RIBE HERENR

&

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY

In order to identify the most significant aspects for the
Group to report in this ESG report, key stakeholders
including investors, shareholders and employees of
the Group have been involved in regular engagement
sessions to discuss and review areas of attention which
will help the business meets its potential growth and be
prepared for future challenges.

STAKEHOLDER’S FEEDBACK

The Group is grateful to the stakeholders for their long-
term support and assistance to its development. It
always attaches great importance to the expectations
and demands of stakeholders in terms of environment,
society and governance. Stakeholders are welcome
to provide opinions on our ESG approaches and
performance.

The Group would communicate with various stakeholders
periodically in order to understand their concerns and
expectations. The communication channels with all
stakeholders include face-to-face meeting, telephone
interview, questionnaire survey and on-site visit. The
following table has summarised various types of
stakeholders, their expectations and communication
channels.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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RE HERERRSE

Stakeholders
ERE

Government and
regulatory authorities

Communication Channels Topics of concern
BREE BEEE
Important conferences, policy advisory, Operation compliance

case reports, inspections, documents

Corporate governance
B I BEE e iE exchange, information disclosure Energy conservation
BEAEHE BREA BRAER BREE
BEER AXER BAMEKE NCIDESE
B B R BE
Shareholder and General meetings, annual reports Profitability
investors REKXKE DEF®W Operating strategy
RERIEEA Transparent disclosure
BAEEN
B R
AHRBERE
Employees Employee satisfaction survey, Salary and welfare
B8 employee activities, workers’ congress, Development and training
employee trainings, staff handbook Occupational health and safety
EImEERAET BIEH- 8 TH BN
BRe BRI 8IFM R ANFI
BEERETS
Media Interviews on business operation, Operation compliance
ey promotion of company culture, Social influence
media conferences Performance of corporate social
ELETH EELESE responsibility
Heegme BREE
PEMETEN
rEAGEERR
Suppliers Supplier evaluation, bidding meetings, Fair cooperation
e negotiations on strategic cooperation, Honest and promise keeping
exchanges and visits Coordinated development
HERER AFRARE® NEFEE
BEAERH RRESHF WIEEH
HREERE
Customers Customer satisfaction survey, holding Realisation of sound industry
Es industry exchanges and promotion development Win-win
activities partnership
EFWmEERASE ERRMITEER
BIRITERIRLIERELTE EHBHAR
Community Charitable activities, community Community welfare Community
' activities, campus talks,

relationship Employment
environmental awareness

promotion
N R HRES G-
TEBRESHE RREA At [ BE R
R E R R
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK

We highly appreciate and welcome feedback from
our stakeholders on the ESG Report. Please give your
suggestions or share your views with us via email at
ccoegw 1@126.com.

Environmental

To demonstrate the Group’s commitment to sustainable
development and compliance with laws and regulations
related to environmental protection, the Group
endeavors to minimise the environmental impact of the
business activities.

The Group has established systems to ensure environmental
compliance. It seeks to optimise its production by
adopting techniques with low energy consumption and
environmental pollution, implementing environmental-
friendly waste disposal methods and enhancing the
environmental awareness of the employees through
regular trainings. The management team has the overall
responsibility for environmental protection matters within
the Group.

Emissions

There are three major types of emissions generated
during the business activities of the Group.

(1) Indirect Greenhouse Gases Emission

The business activities of major business
segments do not directly generate significant
air emissions. The most common air emission
from its daily production and business activities
is indirect greenhouse gas (“GHG") emission
which mainly generated from the consumption of
purchased electricity and water consumption.

As the commitment of energy saving and
environmental protection are the Group’s policies,
we make our best effort to keep the damage to
the environment at a minimal level by reducing
pollutants and wastes during the production
process.

During the Reporting Period, the GHG emissions
of the major businesses were 178.18 tonnes,
representing a decrease of 23.2% as compared
to the emissions of year 2021.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Non-hazardous Water

In terms of the principal business, the products
produced are mainly in solid state. The water is
used for daily consumption and a small amount
of purified water for production, and therefore a
small amount of waste water is generated. As the
waste water is produced in daily use and does
not contain any harmful and toxic substance,
the waste water is discharged into the municipal
sewage system through pipelines.

During the Reporting Period, the total amount
of non-hazardous wastewater generated by the
Group was 14,876 tonnes (2021: 15,547 tonnes),
representing a decrease of 4.3% as compared to
2021.

Non-hazardous Solid Wastes

All major business segments produced non-
hazardous solid wastes which include used
packaging materials, waste from production of
daily office necessities, etc. The Group has policy
in place to encourage its staff to minimise the
use of office supplies, such as using recycle paper
to reduce paper consumption. The Group would
also increase the recycle intensity in the office
and production plants in order to reduce the
amount of waste and achieve the environmental
sustainability target.

During the Reporting Period, the amount of
non-hazardous solid waste was 9.2 tonnes (2021:
11.1 tonnes), representing a decrease of 12.06%
as compared to 2021.

The Group does not generate significant air
emissions or hazardous waste.
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The table below showed the total emissions of
the Group in the Reporting Period and the year
of 2021.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

TRERAEB R REHHH
B —FEMNBERE-

Intensity in 2022 Intensity in 2021
(consumption/ (consumption/

production production

Emission quantities) quantities)

category/Key (energy unit/ (energy unit/

performance Amount Amount tonnes/thousand tonnes/thousand

indicators Unit in 2022 in 2021 pieces) pieces)

—E-CE —E--F

BE CE#E/ BE (CH¥E/

kEE) £EE)

ERER,/ i St 2 —EC--F (BEREM/ (BREf/

BRENEE B B HE M,/ T4 M,/ TH)

Waste water Tonnes 14,876 15,547 0.36 0.30
FEK I

GHG emissions  Tonnes 178.18 232 4.34 4.49
BEREBHN M

Non-hazardous ~ Tonnes 92 1.1 2.24 2.15
waste ]

BEEEY

The methodology adopted for reporting on
GHG emissions set out above was based on
“How to Prepare an ESG Report? Appendix 2:
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs"”
issued by the Stock Exchange.
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Use of Resources
The table below showed total primary resources

consumption in the Reporting Period and the year of
2021.

Resources category/
Key performance

BB -#HE8K

BERRE

BREH
TRETNBEMER T - —F
EHETE2ERHEREE-

Intensity in 2022 Intensity in 2021
(consumption/ (consumption/
production production
quantities) quantities)
(energy unit/ (energy unit/
tonnes/thousand tonnes/thousand

indicators Unit Amount in 2022  Amount in 2021 pieces) pieces)
—E-CE —E--F
BE (EE/ BE (H#E/
£EE) £EE)
ERER/ gt -3 F (BREN,/ (BREN,/
HRENER B g8 E M,/ TH) W,/ T#)
Energy
D
Electricity kWh0'000
EW) ETEE 189.98 224.96 46.27 43.51
Water consumption m3
K MK 42564 35537 1.04 1.45
Packaging Materials ~ Tonnes
BENH WE 22 25 0.54 0.48
Note: Packaging materials include polystyrene foam B YR &TE$%IIK¥WE
containers, paper boxes and a small amount of plastic MHBRGERARE HKER
bags and metal packaging boxes for the major business LEPBS . SBERKE

products of the Group.

The Group has been adhering to the principle of
“saving and spending” and continued to strengthen its
management over water and electricity consumption.
The resources used are principally attributed to
electricity and water consumed at its production
facilities and offices. Under its relevant environmental
policies, the Group proactively seeks opportunities for
increasing operating efficiency to reduce the use of
resources, such as energy savings on lights and air-
conditioning systems. The Group continuously practiced
“energy savings and consumption reductions” in daily
resource use such as water, electricity and consumables,
built awareness of saving electricity and water, and
implemented a strict waste recycling and disposal
process, in an aim to strive for resource-efficient and
clean development of the Company, and reduce adverse
impact of its activities on the environment.
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The Group conducts regular inspections and maintenance
of water equipment, pipeline facilities and water
appliances, and supervises the status of the water
supply network in real time to ensure that the operating
personnel is able to make timely responses in case of
abnormalities, thus effectively reducing the waste of
water caused by “running, overflowing, and dripping”
faucets. The Group also closely monitors the utilisation
of resources and reports the performance to the senior
management in this regard.

The Group gives priority to energy saving and efficiency
improvement, and continues to tap the energy-saving
potential of key energy-consuming equipment and
production processes in production. Targeted technical
transformation plans have been developed and
implemented regarding the production system and
production auxiliary systems, including air-conditioning
systems and lighting systems.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group believes the conservation of natural resources
as an indispensable component of its sustainable
business. Through actively promoting environmental
friendly measures, the Group encourages efficient use of
different resources, including energy, paper, water and
other raw materials. As such, the Group has initiated
policies to raise the awareness of electricity conservation
and taken energy saving measures in the daily operation.

The Group has established systems to ensure environmental
compliance by adopting techniques with low energy
consumption and environmental pollution. The Group has
also appointed dedicated staff to monitor its compliance
with relevant laws and regulations as well as reviewed and
updated the internal environmental protection policies.
Staff is encouraged to support environmental protection,
minimise use of natural resources and reduce wastes. Paper
is to be recycled to reduce paper consumption. Electrical
equipment and lights are only switched on when needed
as one of our power conservation policy. The Group is
committed to implementing all feasible policies to minimise
the adverse impact of its operations on the environment
and natural resources.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group adopted
stringent cost control on the consumption of all primary
resources. Due to the nature of its business, the Group
has no direct and material impact on the environment
and natural resources in the course of its operations,
except for the above emissions and use of resources.

Climate Change

Since the climate change risks are caused by the
increasing severity of global warming effects, indirect
greenhouse gas (“GHG") emission is a significant factor.
Energy-efficiency and carbon reduction are crucial
parts of the corporate culture of the Group, and drive
us to promote innovation and energy conservation
initiatives. The Group is committed to prioritising actions
that mitigate climate change when making decisions.
It works to strengthen production control, strive to
minimise resource waste and pollution, improve sewage
management and reduce energy consumption, with
focus on energy-saving emission reduction technologies
and strategies, to reduce GHG emissions.

Social

The Group adopts people-oriented business philosophy,
emphasizes the rights and interests of employees,
respect their needs, and treat all employees fairly.
The Group provides employees with an ideal working
environment, and expect them to take a positive
attitude towards work in a way that realizes its values.
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BRRE HERERBRKE

Employment and Labour Practices

In terms of the employment, health and safety,
development and training and labour standards,
the Group has complied with all relevant laws and
regulations which include:

1 Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China
((REARKXMBELEZE) )

2 Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China ((PEARKMBLEHERIE) )

3 Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China
((PEARLMBETREIE) )

4 Regulations on the Supervision of Labour Security
((BHREBEEED) )

5 Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China ((PEARAMBLZ 2 4EEX) )

6 Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurance
(KB RBEHD )
7 Regulatlons on the Reporting, Investigation and

Disposition of Work Safety Accidents ( (EEZZ
EHRENMAERIEERD) )

8 Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases
((PEARAMBEBERGRE) )

9 Fire Control Law of the People’s Republic of
China ( (R EARXFBEEFE) )

10 Regulation on the Safety Management of
Hazardous Chemicals ( {fEf(t 2 m% 2% E &
By )

Employment

The Group had a total number of approximately 353
employees (full-time) as of 31 December 2022.

(i) Number of Employee by Gender

BRRETIER
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(i) Number of Employee by Major Business (i) 1EEANBZFEXEE D
Segments 7
BEREE T
. Group headquarters and others . SEAE R EHM
. Taiyuan Changcheng Feibo Optoelectronic ‘ RNIR R K IEE BRI
Technology Company Limited* BR AR
Q Taiyuan Changcheng Weiguang Weitong Q RNRERB M A HARE FRHX
Electronics Company Limited* BRAT
(iv)  All employees of the Group come from the PRC (iv) ZAEEEESDZKFEAPE
(v)  Employee Turnover Rate by Gender () RMUERIE S EES kA S
Female Male
1 B
(vi)  Employee Turnover Rate by Age Group (i) BFRAFIZE D HIEES AR
A#
>30 to 50 >50
(vii)  Regarding the employee turnover rate, all were (i) TIEERAXEFE BLE
occurred in the PRC P B EE A
The Group rewards and recognises performing REBREEEDNZFMER
staff by providing a competitive remuneration RETE2ERRTZETE - A
package and implementing a sound performance HRNKRBRBEEFNHEL
appraisal system with appropriate incentives, and WEBBERIREHES
promotes career development and progression by M REEERNEREE
appropriate training and providing opportunities REF -

within the Group for career advancement.

The Group strictly complies with relevant laws REBBRAITHE 2 HEH
and regulations in the PRC, and develops and SEFRER - BIET I ERAR EATTAR
strictly implements the relevant administrative FAERHERIE HETH
rules and measures, which specify the A Se8EE -F8 87
requirements relating to employment, labour ZHEEHPARRE  BAOR
relations, employees’ remuneration and welfare e ITHE-

to protect the rights of employees. TR R AR AT 53
CRCOCFFR
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Health and Safety

The Group has been committed to protect employees’
health and safety. It maintains the occupational health
and workplace safety management system and policies
in conformity to the internationally applied occupational
health and safety management systems requirements,
and strictly complies with the relevant regulations in
the PRC. In line with the characteristics of the front-
line production department, the Group has set up a
practical and targeted health and safety management
system, which requires to provide complete protective
measures and equipment to employees who are
exposed to occupational risks. The Group arranges pre-
job occupational health training and regular on-job
occupational health training for employees, provides fire
safety training, and conducts regular safety production
education for employees.

There were no work-related fatalities occurred during
the Reporting Period and the past three years. There
were no lost days due to work-related injuries during
the Reporting Period.

Development and Training

Training is an important way to improve the overall
quality and provide comprehensive development of the
employees. The Group has continuously perfected and
modified the employee training management system,
established a multi-level training system, created various
learning opportunities for its employees, imparted them
production skills, maintenance and repair techniques
and safety awareness, in order to improve their
competence, job skills, knowledge and performance,
promote the business development and achieve business
goals of the Company.

In daily operations, the Group provides induction
training for new employees. Experienced employees
will act as mentors to guide the new comers on jobs.
The Group arranges the trainings designated according
to the roles and responsibilities of the employees,
mainly includes human resources management,
managerial skills, legal affairs, risk management, project
running, financial and auditing, technical research and
development, environmental protection, occupational
health and safety etc. The Group also updates the latest
information of the industry and laws and regulations
which is essential to the Group’s operation and their job
responsibilities from time to time.
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(i) Percentage of employees trained by gender (i) EMUFIE S EEES ZIIAS
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type and average training hours per trained ANEHS j;g& HEZTIES
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Average
training
Percentage hours
of employees per trained
Type trained employee
EBEZIAE ZIEEW
Ehl Bo FiFINEH
Administrative 100 32
T
Technical 100 47
iy
Sales 100 35
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Operation and Production 100 41
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Professional/Specialists 100 30
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Labour Standards

The Group provides its staff with a safe, health,
comfortable working environment, together with
labour protection, reasonable remuneration and various
welfares. The Group enters into employment contract
with each of its employee in accordance with relevant
laws and regulations in the PRC and prohibits forced
labour.

The Group strictly abides by laws and regulations
related to child or forced labour, and has achieved
zero employment of child or forced labour during
the year. Every new employee is required to submit a
copy of identity to ensure that he/she meets the age
requirements of the Group and can clearly identify
his/her identity. This policy retrains the hiring of
child or forced labour from the beginning. Thorough
investigations will be conducted for any such practice,
which will be reported to the competent authorities
when appropriate.

OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

To provide top quality services to customers, the Group
carefully sourced its raw materials, packaging materials
and equipment with standardized procurement
procedure and policies. The Group's procurement policy
and its comprehensive procurement management
systems help screen out undesirable products in the
aspects of raw materials, packaging materials and
equipment selection, product formulation, product
packaging, quality management system in factories,
transportation, etc.
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The Group selects suppliers of raw materials, packaging
materials and equipment based on reasonable and
clear criteria, and controls the environmental and
social risks of its supply chain through procurement
requirements. Priority is given to suppliers that purchase
products with advanced processes, provide or use
new energy, advocate environmental protection and
cost reduction, such as reputation, technical skills and
consistent production quality, compliance with industrial
standards, so as to procure superior goods and services
from the most competitive sources. Suppliers are
strictly required to supply products in compliance with
environmental and social laws and regulations. The
Group’s research and development department states
product specification for the suppliers to follow, while
the quality control department performs sample tests to
ensure that goods and materials received by the Group
are in compliance with the quality and specifications
before they are accepted and transferred to the
warehouse.

The Group will select enterprises with a good reputation
for being environmentally and socially responsible and/
or that hold environmental certification, to ensure that
they can meet the requirements of the Group in relation
to the materials and services provided, and minimise
the environmental and social impacts of their business
activities.

The Group places great emphasis on building a
clean organization. At the end of each year, senior
management of the Company will pay visits to
the senior management of its major suppliers for
independent meeting. During those visits, apart
from business negotiations, integrity issue will also
be brought up and the Company's requirements in
accordance with various relevant rules will be reiterated.
Such approach has gained extensive recognition and
support from suppliers.

During the Reporting Period, the major business
segments of the Group had worked closely with 105
suppliers, all of which are located in the PRC and
majority of them are from northern and eastern regions
of the PRC, respectively.

Distribution of suppliers in the major business segments
by geographical locations:
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Product Responsibility

The Group has obtained 1SO9001 quality management
system certification. The Group places great emphasis
on the quality of the products, and adopts quality
control measures covering various aspects of the
procurement and production operations to ensure the
Group’s quality system operate in an effective manner.
The Group signs sales contracts with its customers,
which set out product details, specifications, warranty,
conditions of returns, intellectual property, rights and
obligations, etc.. The Group provides sales service and
follow-up service and keeps the information of all
customers in safe custody. During the Reporting Period,
there were no products sold subject to recall for safety
and health reason.

A quality inspection department has been set up to
perform random quality checks for products. Products
will also be sent to the quality inspection department
for regular quality appraisal. If there is any product
recall, the Group will arrange a quality inspector to
visit the client and determine whether there is a quality
issue. If yes, such product will be returned to the
company for warehousing processing, and the quality
inspector will check again whether it can be resold.

The Group deeply understands the importance of
product quality and safety of its products. The Group
has developed policies to ensure that buyers are
satisfied with its products. Procedures and systems
are in place to give timely redress towards any
dissatisfaction reported or discovered. During the
Reporting Period, the Group did not have any record of
complaints or product recalls based on the quality of our
products.

The Group undertakes to comply with the relevant laws
and regulations in the PRC to ensure that the rights and
interests of customers are strictly protected. Information
collected by the Group from its customers would only
be used by the sales department for management.
Other departments are not permitted for the use,
exportation and copy of any customer’s information.
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have
any material non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations on health and safety, advertising, labeling
and privacy issues related to the services provided.
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Intellectual Property Rights

The Group is committed to protecting and respecting
intellectual property rights by registering patents for our
products. During the Reporting Period, the Group did
not have any material non-compliance with Patent Law
of the PRC ( {HFEE AR FEMBEIFEFE) ), Trademark Law
of the PRC ( {(FR#E AR KX MBEFIZL) ) and other laws
and regulations related to intellectual property rights.

Anti-corruption

The Group values credibility and integrity and follows
the principle of fairness in its daily operation. The
management adopts zero-tolerance attitude towards
any forms of corruption, fraud, money laundering,
bribery and extortion in the course of its operations. The
Group has complied with relevant laws and regulations,
such as the Criminal law of the PRC ( {2 AR A
B f5%) ) and the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the
PRC((HEARKAMBERFAEZEHREFIE) ).

The Group understands the importance of publicizing
anti-corruption to employees. It makes efforts to
communicate and popularize the Company’s in-house
rules and requirements, external laws and regulations
and related knowledge to staff members through
meetings and staff communication activities, etc.,
with a view to highlighting compliance with relevant
laws and regulations, upholding ethical standards
and turndown of temptations. The Group has set up
reporting mailboxes, reporting hotlines, compliance
reporting mailboxes and other channels. Whistleblowers
are able to report by telephone, letter, interview, etc.
The person responsible for handling the reporting is
required to fulfill his/her duties. Any person who has an
interest in the reported matter shall voluntarily avoid. It
is strictly forbidden to disclose the name, unit, address,
etc. of the whistleblower. The Group prohibits any
departments, institutions or individuals from attacking
or retaliating against the whistleblowers in any case,
and the offenders shall be given heavy punishment in
accordance with relevant regulations.

During the Reporting Period, neither the Group nor its
employees were involved in any breach of law or any
legal proceeding in connection of corruption.

BR -#HE8K

BERRE

15 EE
AEEFINRABEMNEREME
Ao ARENREEMBERE - NIRE
HE AEEHECAREER (P
EARKMBEEREFE) (PEAR
HIBERRIE) NH 70 8 EE #E AR
BRREARNITR-

KRES

AEEERBERR BEZEMN
REFRERRA-EEEILTAER
EEEEBRETPRELEEATANE
5 BGE R RE B MREEEFT
R AEEEEST (FEARKME
R R (REARKMBERAE
EBFR) SHBARERIER -

AEEROREEEHERETNE
T BEBEREMETERIDS
FR REEFE ERAFAIBHR
B R R E ~ INERER RoE R R AR R AN
o FELL DR FAEE ST AR K
ERRIGEERERERBFXR A

SER T BRI BRFEF AR
ﬁ#&fukk:EL WMBAREKAE
EeEH EAEFANRR-BRKE
ERBEEABIKERT BHER
FIEANEBED - E@J@L B2
MERBEANGER B FUES
Jo BRAERERPT - e - B A TS
AERFEOITE  RERBAHR
EREREERREBREIATEINE
BRIE o

R AR - AEEREETHAS
RAMEESEBOEAT AR
B

mﬁﬁiﬁwtasmwﬁmm 59

B



60

Community
Community Investment

The Group always seeks to be a positive force in the
communities in which it operates. The management
has been adhering to the idea of building harmony in
society and among community, and leading staff for
active involvement in organizing and strengthening
good community environment, taking active part in
organizing and participating in various social activities
within the community for promoting and building
humanities within harmonious community. The
management has also maintained close communications
and interactions with the communities in order to
contribute to local development.

The Group believes that the creation of a peaceful
community relies on the cooperation of people,
corporations and the government. By working together
with various community partners, the Group believes
it can bring a tremendous impact on the sustainable
development of the communities in which it operates.

The Group will also actively encourage staff to volunteer
their time and skills to benefit local communities. It also
encourages employees to actively participate in social
welfare, volunteer services and community activities in
their spare time, so as to give them the opportunities
to find out more about the issues of the society and
environment and reinforce the Group’s corporate values.

Community Welfare and Volunteer Activities

Care for veterans’ activity: condolences were made to
retired veterans on 1 August, the Army Day, to pay
tribute to the loveliest person, extend holiday greetings
and best wishes to them, and express gratitude for their
important contributions to the country and society.

Firefighting: On 9 November, the Fire Publicity Day,
employees were arranged to attend firefighting training
and publicity activities organized by the community, visit
firefighters and participate in firefighting drills.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

CCTH CPA LIMITED
RIEXEEEEIRAQE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SHANXI CHANGCHENG
MICROLIGHT EQUIPMENT CO. LTD.

(Incorporated in the Peoples Republic of China with limited
liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment
Co. Ltd. and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group”) set out on pages 66 to 163, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the
matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section
of our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion on these consolidated financial statements. In all other
respects, in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
M % BT 3R &

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(a) Going concern

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements that the Group had net current liabilities and
net liabilities of approximately RMB140,403,000 and
RMB97,926,000 respectively as at 31 December 2022.
In addition, as detailed in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had outstanding bank
and other borrowings with the aggregate carrying
amount of approximately RMB68,597,000 as at 31
December 2022, of which (i) the borrowings amounted
to approximately RMB5,472,000 have been overdue
for repayments; and (ii) the borrowings amounted to
approximately RMB10,580,000 is repayable within one
year after 31 December 2022. These conditions indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern and therefore the Group may be unable
to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.

Notwithstanding the aforementioned, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis. Should the going concern basis be
inappropriate, adjustments may have to be made for the
Group's assets to their net realisable amounts, to provide
for further liabilities that might arise, and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets
and current liabilities respectively.

In the absence of sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to substantiate that the Group can operate as a going
concern, we are unable to form our view as whether it
is appropriate for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (continued)

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “2021
Consolidated Financial Statements”) were audited by us
and our report of disclaimer of audit opinion on the 2021
Consolidated Financial Statements was issued on 10 June
2022, which included the scope limitation relating to the
impairment of property, plant and equipment as we were
unable to determine whether the impairment loss on the
Group’s property, plant and equipment, based on their
estimated replacement costs, amounted to approximately
RMB5,211,000 was properly recognised in the
consolidated financial statements. Any adjustments to be
made for the impairment of the Group's property, plant
and equipment, if any, might have significant impacts on
the consolidated financial position of the Group at 31
December 2021 and the Group’s financial performance
for that year then ended.

For the current year ended 31 December 2022, as set
out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements,
management of the Company, with reference to the
external valuer’s valuation of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment based on their estimated fair values,
considered that no impairment loss on the Group's
property, plant and equipment was required to be
recognised in the consolidated financial statements,
accordingly the impairment loss amounted to
approximately RMB5,211,000 recognised in the prior year
ended 31 December 2021 was reversed and credited to
profit or loss of the Group for the current year.

In the absence of sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to substantiate that the impairment loss amounted to
approximately RMB5,211,000 is properly recognised for
the prior year ended 31 December 2021,
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (continued)

(b) Impairment of property, plant and equipment
(continued)

(1) we are unable to determine whether the reversal
of the impairment loss previously made amounted
to approximately RMB5,211,000 credited to profit
or loss in respect of the current year ended 31
December 2022 is properly recognised in the current
year's consolidated financial statements; and

(2) our opinion of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the current year is also
modified because of the possible effect of the
aforementioned matter on the comparability of the
current year's figures and the corresponding figures
for the prior year ended 31 December 2021.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue
an auditor’s report that include our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any person for the contents of this report.
However, because of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not able
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a
basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial
statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

CCTH CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 19 May 2023

Ng Kam Fai
Practising Certificate Number: P06573

Unit 1510-1517, 15/F.,, Tower 2,
Kowloon Commerce Centre,

No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REREREMEZE RS X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZ_-_FT_-_—F+_HA=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E-C T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
fft &+ AR TR ARKFT
Revenue W 8 15,535 18,417
Cost of sales and services $HE K PR FE R AN (9,578) (15,100)
Gross profit EF 5,957 3,317
Other income, gains and losses, net H MU A - Yg 25 & E548 - 5 58 9 35,481 2,854
Reversal of impairment loss/ MY E BB NE&E2RE
(impairment loss recognised) on BEERL (BRZRE
property, plant and equipment E18) 16 5,211 (5,211)
Reversal of impairment loss on e EWE SRR ZRESE
trade receivables 21 2,492 -
Impairment losses recognised on:  FtIA NEER 2 REE1E
— trade receivables —ERE S ER 21 (4,107) (5,104)
— other receivables — H b fE W IR 22 (137) (5,000)
Loss on legal claims recognised ERBEEREZEE 25 (2,963) (5,124)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEMAX (490) (353)
Administrative and other operating 7} E b &8 & Bl %
expenses (20,733) (17,430)
Finance costs 7% & A 10 (8,293) (8,406)
Profit/(loss) before tax BRBIADER (E8) 12,418 (40,457)
Income tax expense FrigHi < 11 - -
Profit/(loss) and total FREN(BE)R
comprehensive income/(loss) 2mEkE (BB EHE
for the year 12 12,418 (40,457)
Profit/(loss) for the year LTEEERER, (BFE) :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZNNEIEF DN 12,430 (40,390)
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR M A (12) (67)
12,418 (40,457)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) LA TG ERZEUE,
for the year attributable to: (F518) 8%
Owners of the Company RABHE A 12,430 (40,390)
Non-controlling interests FEVE R I A (12) (67)
12,418 (40,457)
Earnings/(loss) per share (RMB) &RER  (E#E)
(AR¥T) 15
— Basic —EK 0.040 (0.131)

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.

Annual Report 2022




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B BRI R

As at 31 December 2022 R-_ZE-_—#F+_H=+—H

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Mt a7t AR¥Frx ARBF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEREE 16 115,009 114,212
Right-of-use assets EAEEE 17 9,365 9,658
Interests in associates RE &N R 2R 19 - -
124,374 123,870
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 20 10,148 10,455
Trade and bills receivables JEWE SRR MR 21 7,779 8,486
Prepayments, deposits and other AR - e R E M UK
receivables 18 22 7,942 5,295
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEEER 23 405 399
26,274 24,635
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade payables FERTE SR 24 9,045 8,638
Accruals and other payables J& &t TR I Ko EL A FE 1 5RIE 25 124,353 110,374
Contract liabilities = ON=Er 26 5,928 5,522
Amounts due to shareholders &S BE SR 3R IR 27 9,062 20,284
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 28 16,052 93,708
Deferred government grants BT E B 29 2,237 2,250
166,677 240,776
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RBaEEHE (140,403) (216,141)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBER
LIABILITIES (16,029) (92,271)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kFBERE
Amounts due to shareholders &S PR R 3R IR 27 11,822 2,382
Bank and other borrowings RITRHEMEE 28 52,545 -
Deferred government grants BT E B 29 17,530 19,767
81,897 22,149
NET LIABILITIES EEFE (97,926) (114,420)
IWAERBHMABMROERAR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRIk R &

As at 31 December 2022 WR-ZE-—#+_-HA=+—H

2022 2021
—E=-= T —%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it 2% AR¥TT ARETF T
EQUITY i

Share capital fi% 7 30 30,886 30,886
Reserves i 31 (128,684) (145,190)

Deficit attributable to owners KRAREE ANEEEL
of the Company (97,798) (114,304)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR = (128) (116)
TOTAL DEFICIT ON EQUITY EEE AR (97,926) (114,420)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 66 to 163 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
19 May 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wu Bo

R

Director

BEF

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.

Annual Report 2022
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VAHATEERREE:

Jiao Baoguo
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REREaR® X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_—FT_-_—F+-_H=1+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADTREARL
Statutory Non- Total
Share Capital surplus Other Accumulated controlling  deficit on
capital reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
EERH

Bx  EXfER B RbRE%E  ZHER gt FEREE AR
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMBOO0  AMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMB00O
ARETT ARRTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR

At 1 January 2022 S
i = 30,886 18,561 11,860 981 (176,592)  (114,304) (116)  (114,420)
Profitloss) and total &5/ (BB RERZE
comprehensive incomef(loss) 1%/ (BB ) &8
for the year - - - - 12,430 12,430 (12) 12,418
Fair value gain arising from ~~ REEFEL 2 ATEKE
shareholders' loan (note 270)  (fii527b) - - - 4,076 - 4,076 - 4,076
Transferred from other reserve  BE fhEEEEEZ 2 ER
to accumulated losses - - - (981) 981 - - -
At 31 December 2022 R_BZ-F
+ZA=t-H 30,886 18,561 11,860 4,076 (163,181) (97,798) (128) (97,926)
At 1 January 2021 RZE--5-F-H 30,886 18,561 11,860 977 (136,202) (73,918) (49) (73,967)
Loss and total comprehensive  BERERZAF LS
loss for the year - - - - (40,390) (40,390) (67) (40,457)
Fair value gain arising from ~~ REEHEL 2 ATERE
shareholders' loan (note 27)  (Fi£27) - - - 4 - 4 - 4
At 31 December 2021 RZE--F
T-R=1-H 30,886 18,561 11,860 981 (176,592)  (114,304) (116)  (114,420)

WA RBMEEMROBRD A
CRCOCFFR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
fft &+ AR TR AR F T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXK s HERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax BREADEF S (EBE) 12,418 (40,457)
Adjustments for: AT HIEELAE:
Interest expense FERX 10 8,293 8,406
Depreciation of property, plant Y- HEREETE
and equipment 16 4,316 4,911
Depreciation of right-of-use TRAREERE
assets 17 293 290
Deferred government grants BEBm 2 BEEBITEB)
released to profit or loss 9 (2,250) (2,305)
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE WEREEZ
plant and equipment &= (272) (478)
Interest income FEMKA 9 (1 (5)
Allowance for inventories BRI ERE
recognised 3,403 458
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ WE B R EREER
impairment loss recognised on ORfEEIBED) JREEE
property, plant and equipment 16 (5.211) 5,211
Reversal of impairment losses BOomEWE FHRRERZ
recognised in respect of trade BB EE
receivables 21 (2,492) -
Impairment losses recognised on: A TR Z REEE:
— trade receivables — W E ZERXK 21 4,107 5,104
— other receivables — H {th & WK IE 22 137 5,000
Loss on legal claims recognised EHRBEEREZER 25 2,963 5,124
Impairment loss recognised on HRBLERRZIREER
investments in associates 2 BIEEE 88 92
Waiver of interests payable % B AT I B 9 (22,647) -
Fair value gains on other HtEE 2 A TFEYS
borrowings 9 (10,184) -
Operating cash flows before RETHRESRE
working capital changes KRETEEERD (7,039) (8,649)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories wE (&M, md (3.096) 1,783
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bills FEUWE 5 &K ZE
receivables () (908) 7,837
Increase in prepayments, deposits BRI « & & K H Aty
and other receivables JRE Y R IR 38 10 (2,784) (1,155)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables &I & 5 8RFIE N, CR4) 407 (320)
Increase in accruals and other EEtEBRA REMERN
payables FRIELE AN 12,652 973
Increase in contract liabilities ERBEEM 406 42

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2022




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_-_F_-—#+_-H=+—HILFZF

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

S ARMFT ARETT

Net cash (used in)/generated REXER (FFR) /FEEZ
from operating activities RERETFE (362) 511

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFEBHZHERE

ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and BEWME BELXE

equipment 16 41) (9)
Proceeds on disposal of property, ﬁ’E%% B R E

plant and equipment IR 411 478
Interest received EHﬂZ AIPS) 1 5
Advance to an associate BT KB E N A (88) (92)
Net cash generated from REEZBHESE

investing activities ReRheFHE 283 382

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ®mIEFEBHHERE

ACTIVITIES
Advance from shareholders DD &SN 32 1,150 2,240
Proceeds from other borrowings HiE B 2 MEHRIE 32 - 45
Repayment to shareholders BEE N 32 (170) -
Repayment of bank and other RITREMEE ZER

borrowings 32 (70) (3,150)
Interest paid ENEES) 32 (825) (845)
Net cash generated from/ BETEFAELE(FTA)

(used in) financing activities ReREFHE 85 (1,710)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) RERBREEEEAE

IN CASH AND CASH #whn, Rd) R

EQUIVALENTS 6 (817)
Cash and cash equivalents at REVMzReRIBEEEE

beginning of the year EH 399 1,216

Cash and cash equivalents at RERZRERESLEE

end of the year HA 405 399
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES HeRREESEBEBALR

OF CASH AND CASH ks

EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash RITEEHR LR 23 405 399

m&ﬁﬁta&ﬁggﬁmm 71
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd. (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"”) on 10 November 2000 as a joint
stock limited company. The Company’s H shares are listed
on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section of this
annual report.

Trading of shares of the Company has been suspended
as from 13 June 2022 and remained suspended as at 19
May 2023, the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements.

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) include design,
research, development, manufacture and sale of image
transmission fiber optic products. The principal activities
of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi ("RMB"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company. All amounts contained in
these consolidated financial statements are rounded to
the nearest thousand of RMB except where otherwise
indicated.

GOING CONCERN BASIS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had net current liabilities
and net liabilities of approximately RMB140,403,000
and RMB97,926,000 respectively. In addition, as detailed
in note 28, the Group had outstanding bank and other
borrowings amounted to approximately RMB68,597,000
as at 31 December 2022, of which (i) the borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB5,472,000 have been
overdue for repayments and (ii) the borrowings amounted
to approximately RMB 10,580,000 is repayable within one
year after 31 December 2022. These conditions indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern and therefore the Group may be unable
to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2022

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_-_F_-—#+_-H=+—HILFZF

GOING CONCERN BASIS (continued)

The directors of the Company have been taking steps
to improve the liquidity position of the Group. These
steps include (i) negotiating and implementing debts
restructuring plan with shareholders, borrowers and
banker; (ii) negotiating and implementing loan interest
reduction plan with shareholders and borrowers; and (iii)
seeking financial support from substantial shareholders
and borrowers.

Provided that these measures can successfully improve
the liquidity position of the Group, the directors are
satisfied that the Group can operate as a going concern
and is able to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis. Should the Group be unable
to operate as a going concern, adjustments would have
to be made to write down the value of assets to their
realisable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets
and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities respectively. The effect of these adjustments
has not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021

Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

2.

FEKEEE (F)
ARREE-ERE R E A EE
MABESER - X SHBEIE: ()
B S EARBITEENEEE
BEEHR: (VERRREEARES
MEBREERFI BT RG)BK
EERRREEANGEEL -
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HESWN MEFERAREEF
RIS KB S A] BRI e K B
MPHET -HiL e HHERE
BREREEERE -MRAEEE
ERERLE AIBBETRABUKE
EBERCEENZERSHE TR
AREEANIMRE-—FBE LA
MBEENMERBEEDHEH DA
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FEWARRBRNGE W ERERA -

ERAEEMBBREEN([F
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FEEBREHLERCEBUBRREE
B ZAERT &
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REBAREATIAELGIMAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 3. Eﬁﬁélﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ =28 ([&
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING B BHREEA]) ZBTR
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued) (#&)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily TEERFERZEBUBEREE
effective for the current year (continued) B ZEFT A (&)
The amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had RARE FIERT B B B B 2 A1 ¥
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions RRRIRAEE KB EFE MR
and performance for the current and prior years and/or AREBB R KR ERE B RE
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial HIFEETEITRERZE-
statements.
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not EHEMEMRERZHTERBME
yet effective HEER R HERT AR
The Group has not early applied the following new and REFEW EREF RN T EBME
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are REBZHFTBARNEREEL R H
not yet effective: {EET A :
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts' BB BRE LR RipaH)
F17%
Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts' ?ﬁé BB LR RREL
VL4 H]
Amendments to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and ’Eﬁé,ﬂﬁkﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁw ERMBMEENE
HKFRS 9-Comparative Information’ EAVE A T 175 R BB R

RHZOR E R
RA- AR

Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting Policies’ BB e ER HHENRE
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 F1RREB
B R AR
ERHRS
EVLiva
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates' BAEQRER S EFNER
XL A
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and BB gL HE-QHEEN
Liabilities arising from a Single F125%5 2 185] BEEREGERH
Transaction’ FEER A
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback? B BEREER ERMEEMEERE
F165% 2 185]
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or AL HEEIBARRY
Non-current? 1R 2B EE L
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants? BEGIER A REMIER S
1R 2B B

7 Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_-_F_-—#+_-H=+—HILFZF

APPLICATION OF AMENDEMNTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective: (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of these new and
amendments to HKFRSs, which are not yet effective, will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the
term “significant accounting policies” with “material
accounting policy information”. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if
the amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting
policy information relating to material transactions, other
events or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses
to disclose immaterial accounting policy information,
such information must not obscure material accounting
policy information.
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FIASN RRBIEEFAHN A B #K
FE %% M AR LR ¥R BB 7%
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BEEBETEREIRREBUBER
HERERREE2RZMETEE
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BEGHEAFIRTUETT A&
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APPLICATION OF AMENDEMNTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
(continued)

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements (the “Practice Statement”) is also amended
to illustrate how an entity applies the “four-step
materiality process” to accounting policy disclosures and
to judge whether information about an accounting policy
is material to its financial statements. Guidance and
examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected
to have significant impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group but may affect the disclosures
of the Group’s significant accounting policies. The
impacts of application, if any, will be disclosed in the
Group’s future consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

The amendments define accounting estimates as
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty”. An accounting
policy may require items in financial statements to
be measured in a way that involves measurement
uncertainty — that is, the accounting policy may require
such items to be measured at monetary amounts
that cannot be observed directly and must instead
be estimated. In such a case, an entity develops an
accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by
the accounting policy. Developing accounting estimates
involves the use of judgements or assumptions based on
the latest available, reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting
estimates in HKAS 8 is retained with additional
clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to
have a significant impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_-_F_-—#+_-H=+—HILFZF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary users.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange (”Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

Significant accounting policies
(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_-_F_-—#+_-H=+—HILFZF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give
it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings
of the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group,
other vote holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Group has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need to be
made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets, liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein, which represent present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share
of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon
liquidation.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between
the Group and the non-controlling interests
according to the Group's and the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised.
A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and
is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statement using the equity method of accounting.
The financial statements of associates used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. Changes in
net assets of the associate other than profit or loss
and other comprehensive income are not accounted
for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the
Group’s interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group's net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

Interests in associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which
the investee becomes an associate. On acquisition
of the investment in an associate, any excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists,
the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

Interests in associates (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate and the retained interest is a financial asset
within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and
the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of the relevant interest in the associate is included
in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal
of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate
on the same basis as would be required if that
associate had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or
loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/
partial disposal of the relevant associate.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in
an associate but the Group continues to use the
equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or
loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership
interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to
the extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_-_F_-—#+_-H=+—HILFZF

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4. HZEHBHRERZFEREER

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT EESTERE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued) EESTERE(HF)

(d) Foreign currencies (d) s

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading
of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a partial disposal of an interest in an associate
that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Foreign currencies (continued)

(e)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets,
including land and buildings, held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at
initial recognition. To the extent the allocation of the
relevant payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in
the consolidated statement of financial position. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in
the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis. The principal useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 50 years or over the lease
terms, whichever is
shorter

Leasehold 10 years or over the lease

improvements terms, whichever is
shorter

Plant and machinery 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 - 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.
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e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

U]

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 or
arising from business combinations, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative standalone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to
separate non-lease components from lease
component, and instead account for the lease
component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of properties that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option. Lease
payments on short term leases are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; and

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

U]

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in
which the Group applied the practical expedient,
the Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for
as a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective date of
the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to
the relevant right-of-use asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease modifications (continued)

When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

When the modified contract contains one or more
additional lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component. The associated
non-lease components are included in the respective
lease components.

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a
direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the
Group has elected to apply the practical expedient
not to assess whether the change is a lease
modification if all of the following conditions are
met:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for
the lease immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and

e  there is no substantive change to other terms
and conditions of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

U]

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Covid-19-related rent concessions (continued)

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for
the changes applying HKFRS 16 if the changes are
not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease
payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted
to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit
or loss in the period in which the event occurs.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying
asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as
a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset,
and such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-
lease components, the Group applies HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated
from lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone selling prices.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

(9)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessor (continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted
for under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair
value. Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments from
lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that
were not part of the original terms and conditions
are accounted for as lease modifications, including
lease incentives provided through forgiveness or
reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an
operating lease as a new lease from the effective
date of the modification, considering any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to the original lease
as part of the lease payments for the new lease.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average basis. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where
appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contract with Customers (“HKFRS
15"). Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability, and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees or points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_-_F_-—#+_-H=+—HILFZF

MEMBHRRZEREER
BEEEHRE (&)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4,
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued) EESTERE(HF)
(h) Financial instruments (continued) (h) €EMI A (£&)
Financial assets ETHEE

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial
assets (including trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables and bank balances) which are
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”). The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessment is done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables without significant financing
component. The ECL on trade receivables are
assessed on individual basis.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE_—ZFE—-—#+_-HA=+—HIFFZF

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4. #HREMBEBRRZGHEER
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT EEQ—H&% (%)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued) EESTERE(HF)
(h) Financial instruments (continued) (h) €EMI A (£&)
Financial assets (continued) EREE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) EREEHE (&)
(i)  Significant increase in credit risk () EERRBAEZIEN
In assessing whether the credit risk has P EEfS B 918 R A R {E
increased significantly since initial recognition, ERBAEDBEELE N
the Group compares the risk of a default AEBHNRRE AR

occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

J significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

THEZA ZEZHRRER
Ve tER Ao T A%
EZEHRBEITE R
EETZA G NEE
A%fé/\f@—fslzZEE&
*%T,éfﬂ BIEBRTLER
EAHEINK AR
ﬁﬁﬁ—J SZATMEMEE R -

AEms FREEERR
BEEBREZEMESE B
TE#:

ST EAHNED (203
) s #B1E B R
ZERSTEEEESE
=

e FEERRBRZINETIS
EEEEEZ  fiW
BEEREEZ BBHBAZ
BEEENEHERX
8 38 h0 %

s BE MALHER
U2 B A TR B AR
23 B HEHE
BAZEEETRE
BETRE:

mﬁﬁiﬁwtasmwﬁmm 97

B



98

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

J an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument
has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if (a) it has
a low risk of default; (b) the borrower has a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term; and (c)
adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_-_F_-—#+_-H=+—HILFZF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure
that the criteria are capable of identifying
significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

(i)  Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full.

(iii)  Credit impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about
the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iii)  Credit impaired financial assets (continued)
(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation.

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of
the probability of default, loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a
default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data
and forward-looking information. Estimation
of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE_—ZFE—-—#+_-HA=+—HIFFZF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4. ZEAUBBRZFEREER

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT Egé*ﬁ% (%)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued) EESTERE(HF)

(h) Financial instruments (continued) (h) €EMI A (£&)
Financial assets (continued) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) EREEHE (&)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)
Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based
on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire. On derecognition of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of a group
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (continued)

(@

()]

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities

The Group’'s financial liabilities including trade
payables, other payables and bank and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation represents goods (or
a bundle of goods) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods that are substantially the same.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

(k)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

e the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
goods.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration for
the effects of the time value of money if the timing
of payments agreed (either explicitly or implicitly)
provides the customer or the Group with a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods
or services to the customer. In those circumstances,
the contract contains a significant financing
component. A significant financing component may
exist regardless of whether the promise of financing
is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by
the payment terms agreed to by the parties to the
contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Existence of significant financing component
(continued)

For contracts where the period between payment
and transfer of the associated goods or services is
less than one year, the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the transaction price for
any significant financing component.

() Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

(ii) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to
profit or loss represents contributions payable
by the Group to the funds.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of the dates when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits
and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs and involves the payment of termination
benefits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Borrowing costs

(n)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally
and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset.
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of
the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of
the Group that are outstanding during the period,
other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to it and that the
grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred
and recognised in profit or loss over the period to
match them with the costs they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n)

(o)

Government grants (continued)

Government grants relating to the purchase of
assets are deducted from the carrying amount of
the assets. The grant is recognised in profit or loss
over the life of a depreciable asset by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
recognised in profit or loss because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences,
unused losses or unused tax credits can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(o) Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle
its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the
tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(o)

(p)

Taxation (continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences on initial recognition of
relevant right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary differences
arising from subsequent revision to the carrying
amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities and
lease modifications, that are not subject to initial
recognition exemption are recognised on the date
of remeasurement or modification.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purpose of allocating
resources and assessing the performance of the
Group's various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_-_F_-—#+_-H=+—HILFZF

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to
the Group.

(i)

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(a)

(b)

(@

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or of a parent
of the Company

An enity is related to the Group (reporting
entity) if any of the following conditions
applies:

(d)

®)

(9)

The entity and the Company are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(q) Related parties (continued)

(i) An enity is related to the Group (reporting
entity) if any of the following conditions
applies: (continued)

(h) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

(i) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

() A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(k) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Company or to a parent of the Company.

(r) Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an asset individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared
with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to
a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units,
with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or the group of cash-generating units. The
carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit or
the group of cash-generating units. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_-_F_-—#+_-H=+—HILFZF

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
(s) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

CRITICAL JUDGMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgments that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in

the consolidated financial statements apart from those
involving estimations, which are dealt with below.

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of which
depends upon the favourable outcomes of the steps
being taken by the directors of the Company as described
in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

(a) Property plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, depreciation and impairment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges
for the Group’s property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives and
residual values of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of similar nature and
functions. The Group will revise the depreciation
charge where useful lives and residual values are
expected to be different from those previously
estimated, or the Group will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets.

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets are evaluated for possible impairment on a
specific asset basis or in groups of similar assets,
as applicable. This process requires management’s
estimate of the fair value with reference to a
valuation report of each asset or group of assets
less cost of disposal. For any instance where this
evaluation process indicates impairment, the
relevant asset’s carrying amount is written down
to the recoverable amount and the amount of the
write-down is charged against the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

CRITICAL JUDGMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(b) Allowance for credit losses of trade receivables

(c)

Trade receivable with credit-impaired are assessed
for ECL individually. In addition, the Group uses
practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables which are not assessed individually
using collective assessment. The provision rates are
based on ageing, repayment history and/or past due
status of respective trade receivables as groupings
of various debtors taking into consideration the
Group’s historical default rates and forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note 21.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expense. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of manufacturing and selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor
actions. The Group will reassess the estimates by the end
of each reporting period.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

During the reporting period, the capital structure of
the Group consists of debt which includes interest-
bearing loans and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.
The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the associated risks
and take appropriate actions to adjust the Group’s
capital structure. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from that of the prior year.

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios, so that it can continue to provide returns
for the shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debts. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Management regards equity attributable to owners
of the Company as capital, for capital management
purpose. Such equity at 31 December 2022 represents
deficit on equity attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately RMB97,798,000,000 (2021:
RMB114,304,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the total capital plus net
debt. Net debt includes trade payables, accruals and
other payables, amounts due to shareholders and bank
and other borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
Total capital includes equity attributable to owners of
the Company. The gearing ratios as at the end of the

reporting period were as follows:
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Trade payables FERTE SR 9,045 8,638

Accruals and other payables JE &t R I8 K H A FE A 5RIB 124,353 110,374

Amounts due to shareholders JFE 1~F I% 3R 5k T8 20,884 22,666

Bank and other borrowings RITRHEMEE 68,597 93,708

Less: Cash and cash equivalents BoReRAEEMEIER (405) (399)

Net debt (EUEE R 222,474 234,987
Deficit attributable to owners of the RANBEA ANEEEA

Company (97,798) (114,304)

Capital and net debt BEARREBFEE 124,676 120,683
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the
Group entities. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of
foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities.
The Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

Credit risk

The Group has significant concentration of credit
risk arising from its ordinary course of business
due to its small customer bases and limited
counterparties involved. This credit risk mainly arises
from the Group’s trade and other receivables. The
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debtor at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate provision for
impairment is made for irrecoverable amounts.
There is no requirement for collaterals by the Group.

At 31 December 2022, the Group had concentration
of credit risk relating to its customers as the
amounts due by the Group’s largest debtor of
approximately RMB3,606,000 (2021: RMB3,552,000)
and the Group’s largest three debtors of
approximately RMB7,076,000 (2021: RMB5,945,000)
at 31 December 2022 represent approximately 46%
(2021: 42%) and 91% (2021: 70%) respectively of
the Group’s total trade and bills receivables at that
date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

()

The Group considers whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of financial assets
on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting
period by comparing the risk of a default occurring
as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at
the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information. Especially the following information is
used:

- internal credit rating;

— actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower; and

- significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the borrower,
including changes in the payment status of
borrowers.

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed
if a debtor is more than 30 days past due in
making a contractual payment, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise. A default on a financial
asset has occurred when the counterparty fails to
make contractual payments within 90 days after the
payments fall due.

Trade and other receivables are written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such
as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan
with the Group. The Group normally categorises a
loan or receivable for write off when a debtor fails
to make contractual payments after 270 days past
due. Where loans or receivables have been written
off, the Group, if practicable and economical,
continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivable due.

Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant assets and liabilities
which carry interests at variable interest rates,
the Group's operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

E-FE - —HF+ A=+ —HIFE

7. MEERER (&)

(b) FERR (&)

()
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. BBEABRER (&)

(continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (d) REBELER
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current AEBZBERTEHEEBMR
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that FEHORBESF R  BERAK
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its ERFRBEIRBKE - AR
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. RBEERRANORBESF K-
The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted rEESHMABERABEREN
cash flows, of the Group’'s financial liabilities is as WEHBE AT :
follows:

Weighted Repayable More than More than

average  on demand Tyearbut  2yearsbut Total

interest or less than less than less than  undiscounted Carrying

2022 rate 1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
REX 185k 2R AER

S T E AHME BHR2E BHRE  RERBEE RAE

RMBOO)  RMB000  RMBOO)  RMB000  RMB00D
ARBFR  ARETR ARBFT  ARETZ  AREFR

Trade payables ERE5EH - 9,045 - - 9,045 9,045
Accruals and other payables  EFF SR REMENFE - 124,353 - - 124353 124,353
Amounts due to shareholders TR ZUA 4.35%-5.12% 9,074 13 18,359 27,046 20,884
Bank and other borrowings ROREMEE 2%-30% 16,839 385 84,404 101,628 68,597

159,311 398 102,763 262412 m8m

Weighted Repayable More than More than

average on demand 1 year but 2 years but Total

interest —or less than less than less than ~ undiscounted Carrying

2021 rate 1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
BEX 150 E 2B E AER

I b3 EFIHE FOME fBHR%F BORSE  RERELR FaE

AMB000 AMB000 AMB000 AMB000 AMB000
ARETL  ARETT  ARETTL ARETT  ARETR

Trade payables ERESER - 8,638 - - 8638 8638
Accruals and other payables  ERTHUE REMEN A - 110,374 - - 110,374 110,374
Amounts due to shareholders (R A 4.35% 20,38 2,441 - 283 22,666
Bank and other borowings R REMEE 2%-30% 93,800 - - 93,800 93,708

233,194 2441 - 235,635 235,386

1 20 Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_-_F_-—#+_-H=+—HILFZF

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. MBERERE(£)
(continued)
(e) Categories of financial instruments (e) EMIAZSE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARMTFIT
Financial assets: SRMEE:
Financial assets at amortised cost  IZEEK AT ECSMEE
— Trade and bills receivables —RIWEZEREEE 7,779 8,486
— Deposits and other receivables —ik & R H MK FIE 5,167 3,355
— Cash and cash equivalents —RBYERE
RekHFeFEEE 405 399
13,351 12,240
Financial liabilities: = =R
Financial liabilities at amortised cost Z#E K At Ex SR BB
— Trade payables —ENE SRR 9,045 8,638
— Financial liabilities included —FT AFEETFRIE & E A A~
in accruals and other payables REBEZEBAE 124,353 110,374
— Amounts due to shareholders — JET AR SR R IE 20,884 22,666
— Bank and other borrowings —RIOTREMEE 68,597 93,708
222,879 235,386

()

Fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their respective fair values. The fair
values of financial assets and financial liabilities
have been determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on a discounted
cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs

(f) 2¥E

XS

being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk
of counterparties.

AR BT R AR B SRR AR D1 B
ZAKEeREERERBEYZ
REEEESANQFERS-
TREERERABBEZAVFE
REAREERAERERRE
MEDNETE - K& D EXREA
FEARRE F T EERRMR

WA RBMEEMROBRD A
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REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group’s revenue and results from business operations
were mainly derived from its sale of fiber optic inverters,
fiber optic straight plates, fiber optic face plates, fiber
optic tapers, fiber optic tapers billets and microchannel
plates (collectively referred to as “Fiber Optic Products”),
which is regarded as a single reportable segment in a
manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"),
for purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment. The measures of segment results, segment
assets and segment liabilities are consistent with the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and the consolidated statement
of financial position which are reported internally to the
CODM. Accordingly, no segment information is presented

8.

other than entity-wide disclosures.

Entity-wide disclosures

(a) Information about products

The following table sets forth the total sales to
external customers by products and the percentage

of total revenue by products:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

WERkEEIEER

AEBEHLBEZWSMEEEER

BB A RS JCHMER KH
R - e R BB R ( et [ CH
Eml) HEAE-—Z2HOHE EHF

ZIN/N ﬂ%%(ﬂﬂi%%&aﬁ%ﬁ%”i
RERERKE]) VERBE2REF A
HERDEMRBAFEZ T A~
NDEERE DREERDBABZE
BHEAMIBEERKEFERNLEZHR
FEEmhEtEEEERMRAER
B R — 2 Eith - BRI -
BEZHDRER -

EENE

(a) BEFEmzEH
TREIFIIEFFHEN R
#B(RER MMEBREZ B
Dt (REmME) -

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETFT
Revenue, gross amount W 4B %8 17,335 18,437
Less: Sale returns W HERE (1,800) (20)
Revenue, net of sale returns Wa MBREERE 15,535 18,417
2022 2021
—Eg-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT % ARKFIT %
Fiber optic inverters I 4 5 5 23 9,322 60 12,383 67
Fiber optic straight plates Y # B 1R 479 3 1,552 9
Fiber optic face plates KA R 567 4 785 4
Fiber optic tapers b1k 2,212 14 1,269 7
Microchannel plates BB R 2,842 18 2,428 13
Others =i 113 1 - -
15,535 100 18,417 100

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

Entity-wide disclosures (continued)

(b) Geographical information

(c)

The Group principally operates in the PRC and the
Group’s non-current assets are all located in Shanxi,

the PRC.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue

e

=

BENE (£)
#h 13 & )
NEBETERFEETEL M
RNEB 7 IERBEE R ST
B L7 e

mEMBERRHE

F+_A=+—HILFE

WEREETEEN (B)

AEERBINBFF 2 Wk 123t

from external customers by geographical location. HAUBESTHAT :

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ABR®F T
The PRC Fh 7,845 10,302
Hong Kong B 48 3,444
Russia 1B 28 Hi 5,220 3,389
Europe B M 2,422 1,092
Middle East s - 190
15,535 18,417

Information about major customers EBRETEEFZEHR

Revenue from major customers, each of whom

contributed

to 10% or more of the total revenue, is

set out below:

KEXBEF (BREFPHER

2 10%3 A £) 2 Was s an

2022 2021

—EC-CF —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARBF T

Customer A BFER 4,404 3,555
Customer B TR 1,576 2,285
Customer C (note i) ZER (M) 2,336 N/A
Customer D (note i) BPT (M) 3,645 N/A
Customer E (note i) B (KT 2,016 N/A
Customer F (note ii) =P 2 (M) N/A 3,885
Customer G (note ii) =P BE (M) N/A 2,968

WA RBMEEMROBRD A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

8. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT

— = — —

=

F+-A=+—HILFE

8. WakE&sBEHR (&)

INFORMATION (continued)

Entity-wide disclosures (continued)

(c) Information about major customers

(continued)

Notes:

EERE (&)

() ERFEEEFEFZEH (&

Hid:

(d)

()

(ii)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts

Each of the customers did not contribute over 10% (i)
of the total revenue of the Group for the year ended

31 December 2021.

Each of the customers did not contribute over 10% (i)
of the total revenue of the Group for the year ended

31 December 2022.

BEXPHAEEHE_T_—
Ft-A=t—HLFEZH
W R EBB10% A ko

BEXPHAEEBE_T_—
Ft-A=+—HLFEZH
W R EEB10% A ko

(d) REEFEXNZWEDHF

with customers

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARKFT

Geographical markets Hh [ T 35
The PRC Fh 7,845 10,302
Hong Kong BB 48 3,444
Russia iRz 5,220 3,389
Europe B M 2,422 1,092
Middle East PR - 190
15,535 18,417

Major products FEEMm
Fiber optic inverters 4 A% 28 9,322 12,383
Fiber optic straight plates A E R 479 1,552
Fiber optic face plates . 4 TE AR 567 785
Fiber optic tapers Dok 2,212 1,269
Microchannel plates BB R 2,842 2,428
Others HAth 113 -
15,535 18,417

Timing of revenue recognition T T2 M 8 5 T

At point in time AR E ] 15,535 18,417

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_-_F_-—#+_-H=+—HILFZF

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT 8. WEREEIEEN (&)
INFORMATION (continued)
Manufacturing and sales of Fiber Optic Products HEEMBERHEE
The Group manufactures and sells fiber optic prodcuts rEBRERATPHEEAEER-
to the customers. Sales are recognised when control of HENBEREmOITHER (BEmR
the products has transferred, being when the products RNEF)ER WA FERIEFER
are delivered to the customers, there is no unfulfilled FPHERNEXREFPEESERN
obligation that could affect the customers’ acceptance of BIEMABNARBITOER -
the products and the customers have obtained legal titles
to the products.
Sales to customers are normally made with credit HEMBLA TEFPIOKAEFHR -
terms of 90 days. For new customers, deposits or cash HRHERP A ERREeE S
on delivery may be required. Deposits received are MR- BN IEEERABEHNEE-
recognised as a contract liability.
A receivable is recognised when the products are JEWHIEREMXNTEPRER
delivered to the customers as this is the point in time SRR B A EGY  BRAEMNK
that the consideration is unconditional because only the EI HA 2 BT & 78 B8 BRF A 7T 447
passage of time is required before the payment is due.
OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 9. Hfil A - KB REE FH
2022 2021
—E-CF —EFE-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARETFT
Waiver of interests payable % BR FE A F B
(note 28 (b) (iii) (B E28(b)iii) ) 22,647 -
Fair value gains on other borrowings HmEEz AFEKE
(note 28 (b) (iii)) (BT =E28(b)iii) ) 10,184 -
Deferred government grants released to #EE 18z 2 EEBAT & B
profit or loss (note 29) (BFs¥29) 2,250 2,305
Bank interest income H|ITH E WA 1 5
Gross rental income from transmitting B e RABTE
station 23 23
Gain on disposal of property, plant and &% BE k& E 2 K
equipment 272 478
Foreign exchange gain/(losses) 5 W, (E518) 34 (37)
Others HAb 70 80
35,481 2,854

WA RBMEEMROBRD A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. I E A
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARMFIT
Interest on bank borrowing RITIEE R B 768 780
Interest on other borrowings HiEEF L 6,153 6,726
Interest on amounts due to shareholders & {5 B& 5 2018 2~ I & 1,314 835
Interest on discounted bills receivable BRIIREWSRE 258 58 65
8,293 8,406
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. iEHEX
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ARBF T
Current tax: B ERRR IE
- Hong Kong profits tax —BBHNEH - -
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax —hEDEFRER - -

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax and the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax has been made in the consolidated
financial statements as the Group had no assessable
profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong and PRC for

both of the years presented. e

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE_—ZFE—-—#+_-HA=+—HIFFZF

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 1. FEHEX (&)
According to the applicable Enterprise Income Tax Law AR AR A E K TR A8 #0532
of the PRC, the Company, which operates in the Taiyuan LEWFMARTEMESE  BIEFH
Economic and Technology Development Zone (KR BEACEMENE AIRZZE—N
FEF T B [R) of the PRC, and which is registered as a F+—AZ+NLHEB3FANZE15%
New and High Technical Enterprise (f2#THilT{>%), is ZEEMEGREENE -ZIZEER
entitled to a concessionary Enterprise Income Tax rate T —F+ZAEREE AR
of 15% over 3 years, beginning on 29 November 2018. RABRER=ZFRNITEBI% 21D
The certificate was renewed on 7 December 2021, so the EMEMEBEREX EE_T_MF
Company is entitled to another concessionary Enterprise TZARB-BE_ZE__F+=-A
Income Tax rate of 15% over 3 years, until 6 December —t+t—BHIFE XRENZEBFIS%
2024. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the (ZZEZ—F:15% ) 2 EMEHIE
Company was still entitled to a concessionary Enterprise B R
Income Tax rate of 15% (2021: 15%).
The income tax expense can be reconciled to the loss FRIGHF X Al B4R S B R H A 2 HE
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss Wk ABAEEERAT
and other comprehensive income as follows:
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREF T
Loss before tax BrAIE 18 12,418 (40,457)
Tax calculated at the domestic tax rate of BERREIS% (ZTZ—4F:

15% (2021: 15%) 15% ) st E 2 B 1,863 (6,068)
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for tax purposes 78 i @ 2 Fi s o & (1,865) (346)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax A FE B X 2 Wi &

purposes 14 5
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised KR HIEZE 7 BT E (2,039) 4,142
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AEAREGEBZHBYE 2,027 2,267

FIEMR X

Income tax expense

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses and other deductible temporary
differences totalled approximately RMB33,187,000 (2021:
RMB67,641,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of such tax losses and other deductible temporary
differences due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The unused tax losses of approximately
RMB46,777,000 at 31 December 2022 (2021:
RMB40,027,000) is due to expire within one to five years.

RZE-—F+-A=+—H &%
& 7] FB VR4 88 R 2 A 2 (B R AR Bh AR
HMEBSEREMATNREREZER
sHH AR #33,187,000T (ZE = —
F: AR#67,641,0007T) ° BHAER
TEORI R 2 A1) RO - B LR S
Iﬁﬁéﬂé&E@T?ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%%ﬁﬁﬁ

BRERBEE- N_E-_—_F+=A4
=t+—H APAREEBHARE
46,777,000 (ZFE - —F: AR
40,027,0007T) A —ZE RFEAJEH °

mﬁﬁiﬁwtasmwﬁmm 1 27

B
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12. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

—Eo b A=t —AILER

=

The Group’s profit/(loss) for the year is arrived at after

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

12. ERBA,(FE)

AEBZFREN,(BE)S MR A

charging:— NIEE:
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%Frx ARMTFIT
Auditors’ remuneration % ERD B & 550 500
Cost of inventories sold HEFERA 9,578 15,100
Staff costs (including directors’ EIRA(BIEEE=HS)
remuneration)
Wages and salaries ITE&EN#HS 10,687 11,708
Pension scheme contributions RRETEI R 5,072 5,544
15,759 17,252
Depreciation of property, plant and M- WEREETE
equipment 4,316 4,911
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CAEEENE 293 290
Research and development costs B 7t K R 3% A AR 1,886 741
Impairment loss recognised on R ERAREERZ
investments in associates BEEBE 88 92
Allowance for inventories recognised ERRTERE 3,403 458

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2022




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

e

=

mEMBERRHE

F+_A=+—HILFE

13. EER L BREHFALTZEHE

(a) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S (a) EERTETHAEZEHE
EMOLUMENTS
Details of directors’ and chief executive's FARESREZTHAE ZFH B
remuneration for the year are as follows: EAUNNE
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARKFT
Fees we 339 348
Other emoluments H i
Salaries, allowances and benefits Fe EMREVEF
in kind - 8
Pension scheme contributions RIRETEIK - 2
339 358

The emoluments of each director and the chief

executive, on a named basis, are set out below:

BEENRTIBZTRABZHER

mrERESMT

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-S--#4+-A=+-BL¥E

Salaries,
allowances
and other Pension
benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions emoluments
el 4
REM BIR
ue ENER HELEA WedE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
it AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
Executive directors: HiTEE:
Song Zhenglai RBUR 48 - - 48
Wang Lingling FR% 36 - - 36
Zhao Zhi HE (@) 27 - - 27
Jiao Baoguo RIRE 36 - - 36
Non-executive directors: FEHTES:
Yuan Guoliang RER 36 - - 36
Wu Bo 2K 48 - - 48
Independent non-executive By FEHITES:
directors:
Xu Yongfeng ke 36 - - 36
Wang Weizhong TEHER 36 - - 36
Rong Fei R 36 - - 36
339 - - 339

WA RBMEEMROBRD A
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

— = — —

=

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

F+-A=+—HILFE

13. EEREEBREHFA L ZH

® (&)

(a) EBERTEFTHAEZHE

(%)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE-Z-—F+-A=1+-HLEFE

Salaries,
allowances
and other Pension
benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  emoluments
e 2e
REM BRI
we EMEF BE LS W@
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETFT ARETT ARETIL
Executive directors: HITES:
Song Zhenglai KPR 48 - 48
Wang Lingling IRE 36 8 46
Zhao Zhi HE 36 - - 36
Jiao Baoguo ERE 36 - - 36
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Yuan Guoliang RER 36 - - 36
Wu Bo RE 48 - - 48
Independent non-executve  BIUFHITEE:
directors:
Xu Yongfeng kB 36 - - 36
Wang Weizhong TR 36 - - 36
Rong Fei Epild 36 - - 36
348 8 2 358

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_-ZF—~ —

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

mEMBERRHE

F+_A=+—HILFE

13. EEREBREHFA LM

The emoluments of each supervisor, on a named

basis, are set out below:

INDVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued) ® (&)
(b) SUPERVISORS’' REMUNERATION (b) EEE=FH A
Details of supervisors’ remuneration for the year are FAESZHMNFBROT
as follows:
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR®TIT
Fees we - -
Other emoluments =
Salaries, allowances and benefits Ha 2B NEYWER
in kind
Pension scheme contributions RIRET SR - -
5 5

REFZHFMREREIIMT

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE-S-_#4+-A=+-BL¥E

Salaries,
allowances
and other Pension
benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions emoluments
23R4
RHEA RIK
e EUEAN  GEMY  MesE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFn AREFn AREFTrn ARETR
Han Xiaoou BERE - - - _
Dong Yonghong EWN . - - _
Song Zhenbao TIRE - -
- 5 - 5

WA RBMEEMROBRD A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13. EERTEBEBEHFALTZM
INDVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued) & (&)
(b) SUPERVISORS’' REMUNERATION (continued) (b) EESEHEN (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HE_Z_—F+_A=+t—BIFE

Salaries,
allowances
and other Pension
benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  emoluments
e 2R
REM RIK
we  EBEUEAN  HEHF  Megs
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Han Xiaoou BER - - - _
Dong Yonghong ER% - - - -
Song Zhenbao RIRE - 5 - 5
- 5 - 5
Notes: TR
(@  Mr. Zhao Zhi, an executive director of the Company, (@) ZAARBITESFHELEN

passed away on 2 October 2022.

(b)  There was no arrangement under which a director, (b)
the chief executive or a supervisor waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the year.

()  During the year, no emoluments were paid by ()
the Group to a director, the chief executive or a
supervisor as an inducement to join, or upon joining
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

1 3 Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2022
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mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_-_F_-—#+_-H=+—HILFZF

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(c) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL
EMOULMENTS
None (2021: none) of the five highest paid
individuals of the Group were the directors of
the Company. For the year ended 31 December
2022, the five (2021: five) highest paid employees’
emoluments were as follows:

13. EENRTARBBREHFALTZM
& (&)

() EEBEFALZHME

AEBREESHFALIHES
RARARER(ZZTEZ—F:
) HE-_T-__F+=A8
=+—HLEFE - #THRA (=
T —F: hAA)RaFEEZ

[Tk I NE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%F ARKTFIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits e EZBREYEF
in kind 610 545
Pension scheme contributions IRRETF B R 105 136
715 681

The number of five highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

FEN T BE R AR &=
BEAZIT

Number of employees

BE A"
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
Nil - RMB859,000 =z ARM859,0007T
(equivalent to HK$1,000,000) (#H& 51,000,000 7T) 5 5

During the year, no emolument was paid by the
Group to the five highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

FRAEENLERARLRRSH
BB XIS - {E AR IE
AR R E R 2 22 B SRR
e -

umBAtcEEHBEEERAT {33
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

14.

15.

16.

DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for each of the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021.

EARNINGS/LOSS PER SHARE

Basic earnings/loss per share

The calculation of basic earnings/loss per share is based
on the profit attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2022 of approximately
RMB12,430,000 (2021: loss of RMB40,390,000) and
308,860,000 (2021: 308,860,000) shares in issue during
the year.

Diluted earnings/loss per share

No diluted earnings/loss per share is presented as there
were no diluted potential ordinary shares in issue during
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

14. B2

15.

EETEZBRNEE_TE-_—_FK—
T —F+-A=+—HIFEKF
ZATAAIRR B o

EREN BH#E
EREXERN FHiE
EREAZFN BEDLIEEHZE =
E-—F+-_A=+—HLEFE
AKAREBAEBGE RO AR
12,430,000 (ZE - —F: FEA
R #40,390,00070) N F N B 1T
fi% 17308,860,000% ( —Z & — — 4 :
308,860,000/% ) 51 & -

EREBERAN BB
BMESINSREERF EE BAE
BE-_ B —FK-"F-—9F+_-A1
—t+—BUHFEVEBRTEBEEEE
TRAT

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ -HERZE
Furniture
Leasehold Plant and and Motor
Buildings improvements  machinery fixtures vehicles Total
BT HENELE BERME  GLREE RE E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFR ARETT AEEBTT AREFT ARETR
COosT ﬁM
At 1 January 2022 RZEZZF-F-H 149,528 34 47,290 1,934 408 199,194
Additions NE - - 41 - - 4
Disposals e - - (387) - - (387)
At 31 December 2022 RZB-ZF+-A=1-H 149,528 34 46,944 1,934 408 198,848
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND  EHTEREE
[MPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2022 RZEZZF-F-H 371,119 34 44,948 1873 408 84,982
Depreciation for the year ERifE 3,646 - 650 2 - 4,316
Reversal of impairment loss BOLARIAEER
previously made (5,211) - - - - (5.211)
Fliminated on disposals HERHH - - (248) - - (248)
At 31 December 2022 RZB-—F+-A=1-H 36,154 34 45,350 1,893 408 83,839
CARRYING AMOUNT KAE
At 31 December 2022 [ s Ea el 113374 - 1,59 I - 115,009

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2022
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mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_-_F_-—#+_-H=+—HILFZF

16. PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. W% BERZRE (E)

(continued)
Furniture
Leasehold Plant and and Motor
Buildings  improvements machinery fixtures vehicles Total
BF HEMERE HEREE GILRRE e @i
RIMB'000 RIMB'000 RIMB'000 RIMB 000 RIMB 000 RIMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETRT
COosT A
At 1 January 2021 RZE--F-F-H 149,528 34 47622 1,934 408 199,526
Additions RE - - 9 - - 9
Disposals HE - - (341) - - (341)
At 31 December 2021 RZB--F+-A=1-H 149,528 34 47,290 1,934 408 199,194
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ Z:tHERE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2021 RZZZ-F-4-H 28,862 34 44,046 1,851 408 75,201
Depreciation for the year ERRE 3,646 - 1243 2 - 4911
Impairment loss recognised for the ~ ERER 2 HEESE
year 5,211 - - - - 5,211
Fliminated on disposals HERE - - (341) - - (341)
At 31 December 2021 RZB--F+-A=1-H 37,719 34 44,948 1873 408 84,982
CARRYING AMOUNT FEE
At 31 December 2021 R-E--£+-A=1-H 111,809 - 230 61 - 114212

The buildings are situated on land in the PRC under
remaining lease term of 32.5 years (2021: 33.5 years).

As at 31 December 2022, certain buildings with the
carrying amount of approximately RMB42,909,000 (2021:
RMB44,317,000) were pledged to a bank to secure bank
borrowing granted to the Group (note 28(c)).

As at 31 December 2022, certain plant and machinery
with the carrying amount of approximately nil (2021:
RMB365,000) were pledged to secure the amount due to
a shareholder (note 27).

BFERMURTERZ L o FepH
B A325F (Z & - —44:335%F) -

R_E-_—_F+-_A=+—8 K&\
BEH# ANE¥42,909,0007T (ZF = —
F: NR¥44,317,00070) 2 & T 12
FEHRTF—MBRTUEARE TASE
ERITEE 2P (H5E28(c)) °

RZE-—F+-_A=+—H @\
BEHOAREKZL(ZTE=Z—F: AR
#365,000) 2 & THRELKKEE
B AR B PR — (7 % 3R Z0E 2 1
(MF3£27) ©

mﬁﬁiﬁwtasmwﬁmm 1 3 5
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16. PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

In view of the continuous operating losses sustained by
the Group, management of the Company conducted
impairment assessments on the Group’s buildings
included in property, plant and equipment and the land
use right (right-of-use assets, note 17) with reference
to their estimated fair value as valued by an external
valuer not connected with the Group. Having reviewed
the bases and assumptions adopted for the valuation,
management of the Company is of the view that
the aggregate fair values less costs of disposal of the
buildings and the land use right are not less than their
costs less depreciation at 31 December 2022 and no
impairment on these assets is required to be made in the
consolidated financial statements. The impairment loss
on the Group’s buildings amounted to approximately
RMB5,211,000 made in the prior year was reversed and
credited to profit or loss in respect of the year under
review. For the prior year ended 31 December 2021,
impairment loss on the Group’s buildings amounted to
approximately RMB5,211,000 was recognised in profit or
loss in respect of that year which was estimated based
on the valuation of the buildings on the replacement cost
basis.

In addition, management of the Company also,
conducted impairment assessments on the Group's plant
and machinery with reference to their estimated selling
prices as valued by the external valuer and is of the view
that no impairment is required to be made on the plant
and machinery as their estimated selling prices at 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021 are not less than
the carrying amounts of such assets as at those respective
dates.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

16. W% BERKRE (E)

EANREEFELEREE ARRE
BESLEZHANEEERENINIGHE
BFThE 2 5T A FEESRNEENY)
¥ BMELESEBEBEZEF R LI
FAE (EREEE W:T17)ETR
(ER L m%%%ﬁﬁ%%mmg

EBE ARAEEERAE K=

T ZHF+ZA=+—8" 48/ ¥@m
HEBF R HF A2 AR TMER
HEAORITE  BEBREGE ST BR
FARZEEEELRE REF
AEEREFELZREBEOAR
#5,211,0007C 2 F 8 B3 5+ A B B8
FEZE® BE-_T-_—F+=A8
=t+—HULtE—FE KAEEEFZ
B E 1B 49 AR #5,211,0007T B 74
ZEEERER ENRBETFRE
BERAREEET 2 (EEMIEE

BN RAREREMBE R E NG
BEMFEEZATEEEHAER 2K
B R#eSETREN G URAEAR
MZmE RS IEERE REARE
R-EBE-——&FE+-_A=+—HBHE=Z
——F+-A=+—BZHEIEET
BEREBEERZESHBHE KT
ER
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_-_F_-—#+_-H=+—HILFZF

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. EAREE
Land use
right
T b 5 AR A
RMB’000
ABR®F T
COST DN
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, R—ZE-_—F—H—H"
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 —E-—4%+=-A=+—8-
T oF-A-RAK
—E-__F+-A=+—H 10,534
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION RETE
At 1 January 2021 R-ZE-—F—H—H 586
Depreciation provided for the year FREIRTE 290
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZE-_—F+_A=+—8BK
R-_TBZ__F—HA—H 876
Depreciation provided for the year FRFHEITE 293
At 31 December 2022 RZE-_—_F+_-_A=+—H 1,169
CARRYING AMOUNT BRTEE
At 31 December 2022 RZE-_—_F#+_-_A=+—H 9,365
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE-_—F+=_F=+—H 9,658

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group’s land use
right represents the leasehold land with the remaining
lease period of 32.5 years (2021: 33.5 years) and located
at No. 7, Dianzi Street, Demonstration Zone, Shanxi, the
PRC. Such land use right was pledged to a bank to secure
bank borrowings granted to the Group (note 28).

The carrying amount of the land use right is amortised on
the straight-line basis over the remaining lease period.

RZE-_ZFR_FE-_—F+=A
=t+t—H AEENIHERAESR
A EL P RE R E T AH75RAE
Et - THEHANRF (=T
T —%:335%) L FERAEEED
By —HRIT EALEERR 2R
TEEZHEE (HF28) -

T AR 2 BREEIR B ARE BN R
THEHRNEE-

WA RBMEEMROBRD A
CRCOCFFR

137



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

18. i B 2 F]
ARTRBEEAR Y FEWB AR

18. SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: ERCINE
Percentage
of equity
interests
attributable
directly to
the Company
Place of at 31 December
incorporation/ Registered/ 2022 and
registration paid up 31 December
Company name and operations capital 2021  Principal activities
R=B=Z%
TZAZ+-BR
ZB--%
tZA=+-H
AL/ HMBRE/  KAFEEREN
NAER BRREEE BREX RERAL TEER
Shanxi Changcheng Huiging Environmental PRC RMB1,000,000/ 55%  Wholesale of household
Technology Company Limited* RMB200,000¢ water purifiers
("Changcheng Huiging”)
WERAESRRHBEARAR ((RAER]) $E AR¥1,000,0007T,/ RRFKENE
AR #200,0007C¢
Shanxi Shansite Optoelectronics PRC RMBS5,000,000/ 100%  Sales of optoelectronic
Technology Co., Limited* RMBNil® and fiber optics
("Shansite”) products
WERREABMEERAR ([RR%E]) P AR#5,000,0007,/ BEXERAHER
Y

* The English names are for identification only. * RN HTEEMEA

# ERESZFZMERABARKE
1,000,0007T * H# A KR #110,000
TR ARE,000REE-Z
T FERZFEZ—F+ A=+
H2ZAE DRl B ARERE N —&IEE
% A& SRR A

# The registered capital of Changcheng Huiging
is RMB1,000,000, of which RMB110,000 and
RMB90,000 has been contributed by the Group and
the non-controlling shareholder respectively up to 31
December 2022 and 2021.

1 38 Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_-_F_-—#+_-H=+—HILFZF

18. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

19.

e Shansite was established in the PRC with limited liability
on 5 February 2018. The registered capital of Shansite is
RMB5,000,000 and no registered capital was contributed
by the Group up to 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The directors are of the opinion that a complete list of
the subsidiaries of the Company will be of excessive
length and therefore the above list contains only the
particulars of subsidiaries which principally affect the
results or assets of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of both years or at any time during both of the
years.

The Group had no subsidiary which has material
non-controlling interests for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021, accordingly financial
information regarding the non-controlling interests is not
presented in the consolidated financial statements.

18. r!ﬁ%"ﬂ (%)

BEREN _ZE—N\F_ARBEF
Hp s ABABRAR B ERNEM
B R A AN RES5,000,0000T REE
—EZFRZFT=—F+=ZA
=t HASETEHSEME
z]go

BEEREARTKBRARIZEELE
BRALE At Pl ZEEHEETE
FEREHEEENEECLHBRARZ
I

A P B 4R 2 R 3 R 8 4 B 2 (A7) B
B BIEMB AR ETEANERSE
#O

HE-_Z-_—_F#R-_ZF-_—F+=A4
=+ HEFE AFEVTEAEEX
IR ER KM B AR AR IEE
MRIERH IS E R AR RS B R
KREF -

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REtE N B 2=
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF ARBFT

Unlisted investments in the PRC R ZIELEMERE

Share of net assets R EEFE 2,564 2,564
Due from associates JE W Bt 2 R =) FRIB 1,461 1,373
4,025 3,937
Less: Impairment loss recognised B EERREEE (4,025) (3,937)

m&ﬁﬁta&ﬁggﬁmm 1 39
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

19. REE AR 2Rz ()
RIBEIRZ B8 AR FEMT

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the associates at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

Percentage of

equity interests

attributable

directly to

the Company

at 31 December

Place of Registered/ 2022 and
incorporation/ paid up 31 December

Company name registration capital 2021  Principal activities

R-B-ZF

tZA=t-8k

—B=-%

TZRA=t-H

ERAL/ BRBA/  ALAERFEN

AFER BEHY SREX REEAN IEEE

Shanxi Huayuan Transport Optical Technology PRC RMB11,000,000/ 36.36%  Development of fiber optic
and Engineering Company Limited* RMB4,000,000 for intelligent transport
("Huayuan Transport”) system

LRBERRBRERMIRARLA HE AR#11,000,0007T/ RPEERHEEEE
([EEZA]) AR 4,000,000 205

Taiyuan Changcheng Luojiguang Optical PRC RMB2,000,000/ 35.00%  Manufacturing,
Technology Company Limited* RMB700,000¢ processing, research
("Changcheng Luojiguang”) and development and

sales of electronic
components and
optical
subcomponents

ARERELRERRARAA i AR #2,000,0007,/ BT RABLENN
([RABER]) AR 700,000 EE NI HERH

&

Taiyuan Weiguang Feifan Education PRC RMB 100,000/ 49.00%  Education information
Management Consultant Company Limited* RMBNil" consultation,
("Weiguang Feifan”) organizing

cultural and artistic
exchange activities,
housing lease

KREXHNHEEREAERAT M AR 100,000,/ BEENEN BEX
([#XFEA]) ARBZT" REMZRES FE

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_-_F_-—#+_-H=+—HILFZF

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

* The English names are for identification only.

# The registered capital of Changcheng Luojiguang is
RMB2,000,000 of which RMB700,000 was contributed by
the Group up to 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Weiguang Feifan was established in the PRC with limited
liability on 8 November 2017. The registered capital
of Weiguang Feifan is RMB100,000 and no registered
capital was contributed by the Group up to 31 December
2022 and 2021. Accordingly, the Group is obligated to
make capital contribution to this associate amounted to
RMB49,000 (2021: RMB49,000) when required.

The amounts due from associates are unsecured,
interest-free and not repayable within one year.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group recognised
impairment losses of approximately RMB4,025,000
(2021: RMB3,937,000) in respect of the interests in the
associates mainly due to uncertainties surrounding the
industry in which the associate operates.

The associates are accounted for using the equity method
in these consolidated financial statements and the
associates are not considered to be individually material
to the Group.

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s
share of the amounts of all individually immaterial
associates that are accounted for using the equity
method.

19. REEE RN B 2 (4F)

* o ENAREHRBR -

# RHEEL2FMERNRBARK
2,000,0007T - HF A K #700,000
TAEERREBEE S -_—_FN=
T -+ - A=+—H#M-

" BHIEANAR-_E—+FE+— A
NBRFPBEKLZERAR MK
IRz FMEREAR100,000
T RAEERBEE_ZTE-_—_FK
T F+-A=+—HIEH
NEMELA Bl AEBRFE
BAETRARBEAREREEA
R¥49,000 (ZFE - —F: AR
49,0007T) °

FEUCHE 2 R BIFADEER B
BER—FRNEE-

RZE-_—_F+=—_A=+—H &%
EphEE N A 2 EaERBEEIRL
AR#4,0250000 (ZE=Z—F: A
R #3,937,00000) » EE R R ZH L
RAIFIREZITEESNTHBPRAZ
Fr gk o

BE QR EAEREARN L ERAME
BRAARR BB Z QR AR A E
Pl AREEMEBEKN-

TRIRAEBOEFAER TS XL
RTEAMBENFNERE MRS
MR SAAIR

mﬁﬁiﬁwtasmwﬁmm 1 41
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

19.

20.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

19. Rt N T iR (&)

2022
—s=-=

RMB’000

AR¥TFT

2021
—E- %
RMB’000
ARBF T

At 31 December R+=—BR=+-—H
Carrying amounts of interests EmEREE

Year ended 31 December
Loss from continuing operations FIBICE BB

Other comprehensive loss Hih 2 HEEE
Total comprehensive loss FHEERER

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share
of results of the associate, Huayuan Transport, because
the share of losses of the associate exceeded the Group’s
interest in the associate. As at 31 December 2022, the
cumulatively unrecognised share of losses of the associate
is approximately RMB1,918,000 (2021: RMB1,918,000).

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share
of results of the associate, Changcheng Luojiguang,
because the share of losses of the associate exceeded
the Group’s interest in the associate. As at 31 December
2022, the cumulatively unrecognised share of losses

BE+=-A=+—-BLFE

HRDMZBERREREBEBAKE

REEER

AR D FIA

KECRILERNEZBERRZE
T-_—F+-A=+—8"

Bomh—
B RERND(EE
E#1,918,0007T (=

#1,918,0007T) ©

it I
N

T-—F: AR

AIERHA

HROMBERFNERBLAEE

NP /N

AlM LD NEBED KL

MAREDEBERRRIBE L ZE
- _H+-_A=+—8"
RETRERN DG ERRBERD

== \ —
Eom—

of the associate is approximately RMB6,000 (2021: AR¥6,000t (ZFE=Z—F: AR%K

RMB6,000). 6,0007T) °
INVENTORIES 20. 7€

2022 2021

—Eg-— —E -4

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARKFT

Raw materials JR A 695 1,136

Work in progress T8 5,307 4,084

Finished goods RN TR 4,146 5,235

10,148 10,455

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.

Annual Report 2022




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_-_F_-—#+_-H=+—HILFZF

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

. EREZRRRER

2022 2021

—E-= %

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥F R ARMTF T

Trade receivables FEWE 5 BRI 21,208 19,987
Bills receivable JE W IR - 313
Less: impairment of trade receivables B EINE B ERFURE (13,429) (11,814)
7,779 8,486

Bills receivable generally have credit terms of one year
from date of issue. No bills receivable are outstanding as
at 31 December 2022.

As referred to in note 28, repayments of certain of the
borrowings of the Group are guaranteed by the proceeds
from the Group's trade receivables.

An aging analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice

FBREENEENBE B HTH
HEd—F-R_T-__F+_A
=t—RA BERKERERREES-

i EE28pil - BEAEENE TE
EUAREEEWE SRR ZASHRIA
TEYELR °

RBEYR BRESEIREER
BEZRHRNREE KR TN

date and net of provisions, is as follows: T
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TFT AREFIT
0 to 90 days 0%290H 6,570 3,780
91 to 180 days 91H £180H 600 816
181 to 365 days 181H £365H 609 3,890
7,779 8,486

The trading terms with customers are largely on credit.
The credit period is generally 90 days (2021: 90 days).
The Group maintains strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has credit control policy in place to
minimise its credit risk. The Group has significant
concentration of credit risk arising from its ordinary
course of business due to its relatively small customer
bases. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by
management. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

%ﬁ%g}f'z/%f%ﬂ%fkigﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁ
R ZEH—RAEIOR (T - —
F:90H ) o AEBEAEIE %'HEJ%Z@Z
JRE Uk B 7B N B ER B BR 2R I BOR  A R
E/JEW,ET*%HM HRAEEZEF

RS/ BEREEEER
ﬂﬁZTmfﬂﬁimfﬁﬁP o B A A
HEEETHEN -BRESERE

u-l—/%\o

mﬁﬁiﬁwtasmwﬁmm 1 43
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

Impairment of trade receivables was made against
individually impaired trade receivables of approximately
RMB13,429,000 (2021: RMB11,814,000). The individually
impaired trade receivables relate to customers that were
in financial difficulties and the receivables is not expected
to be recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over these balances.

As at 31 December, 2022, the Group’s carrying amount
of trade receivables is approximately RMB7,779,000
(net of allowance for credit losses of approximately
RMB13,429,000) (2021: RMBS8,173,000 (net of allowance
for credit losses of RMB11,814,000)), which includes
receivables of approximately RMB1,209,000 (2021:
RMB4,706,000) that were past due as at that date, but
no additional impairment was made as the management
considers that those debtors continuously paid their debts
and their financial position were not impaired.

The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS
9 to provide for expected credit losses using the lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due. The expected credit losses also
incorporate forward looking information.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2022

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES . ERESERRRRE (&)
(continued)
The movements in impairment of trade receivables are as EWE SRR HEZBNT
follows:
2022 2021
—E-C T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR®FT
At 1 January m—HA—H 11,814 6,710
Impairment losses recognised for the year A2 2R (8 &5 18 4,107 5,104
Reversal of impairment loss on trade BOERKESHERZ
receivables REEE (2,492) -
At 31 December Rt+=—_BA=+—H 13,429 11,814

HERRE BIKE SR FTIRE
WE 5 RFORBEL AR 13,429,000
T(ZEZ—F: AR%11,814,000
TC) e EERIREZ EWE S ER
MEPKERNE L XFER BHZE
JiE UK BR SR S AT W [B] o 7N £ [ N £
ZEERTE AR @R EE A
RAGEANERE-

RZEZ—F+-A=+—H &&
EEKESERZEREANARK
7,779,0007T (IR EEBEREBELHA
R #13,429,000) (ZE=—F: A
R #8,173,0007T) (k1 E & 18 &
A RH11,814,0007T) B BIEL
AR ®1,209,000t (=2 = —4F: A
Eﬁ%momooﬂﬁé;ﬁaatﬁzﬁ B
ERERRZEEHRAFECERER
g E’JHM%#&]URWE A &
MBS ELEEINRE

7N SR [ 18 P & 7B B A5 e i ZE RIS 95R
TER S TDEB AT A B E 5 MR E
AAREERREHRAERNEES
E%‘EF HRMEEER BRES

FERBAZFEERRSE LAY
EI%(’\*E ?ﬁﬁﬂﬁgﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁmﬂl
MEEF o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_-_F_-—#+_-H=+—HILFZF

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

21. EWESZRARER (&)

(continued)
Over Over Over  Overone
Not ~ 3months  6months  9months  year past
past due past due past due past due due Total
Ik k] ok
AEH  SIER SWER  SHWER BEIENL it
At 31 December 2022 RZB-ZE+-R=1-H
Weighted average expected loss rate SR BHEEERTME 2 MET
per ECL assessment HRAERE 0.01% 2.12% - 29.26% 97.02%
Receivable amount (RMB'000) ThEeE (ARETT) 6,571 613 - 3 10,802 21,208
Loss allowance per ECLassessment ~ BABHEEEE FiERE
(RMB'000) (A\E#BTT) (1) (13) - (83) (10480  (11.43)
6,570 600 - 2,219 3 9,mM
Additional loss allowance (RMB'000)  EESMEERE (ARETT)
(notes a) (Bita) - - - (1,670) (322) (1992)
6,570 600 - 609 - 1,119
At 31 December 2021 RZB--4+-A=1-H
Weighted average expected loss rate SR BHEEERTEZINET
per ECL assessment HRBERX 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 70.33% 100%
Receivable amount (RMB'000) ThEeE (AR TT) 4439 3,252 2,135 5,916 4,245 19,987
Loss allowance per ECLassessment  BABHEEER BiERE
(RMB'000) (\R®TT) - - - (4,161) (4,245) (8,406)
4439 3,252 2,135 1,755 - 11,581
Additional loss allowance (RMB'000) ~ ESMEEERE (AREFL)
(note) (M) 972) (831) (1,605) - - (3,408)
3,467 240 530 1,755 - 8,173
Note: et -

Included in additional loss allowance are the loss allowance
amounted to approximately RMB1,992,000 (2021:
RMB2,492,000) made in respect of the Russian customers. At
31 December 2022, the Group had trade receivables from two
(2021: one) Russian customers amounted to approximately
RMB1,992,000 (2021: RMB2,492,000) which remained
outstanding up to the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements. Management of the Company is of the
view that it is highly uncertain for the recoverability of the
receivables as a result of the recent military conflicts between
Russia and Ukraine; accordingly, loss allowance amounted
to approximately RMB1,992,000 (2021: RMB2,492,000) was
recognised on the receivables.

HINEEBEERRABETEREL 2
BB EH ARK1,992,0000T (ZE = —
F£: ARM2,492,0000T) R B —4F
+ZA=+—H AEEFEKME (=
T —F—F)RENBEPLZEWE FE
A ANREE1,992,000T (ZZE=——F: A
R #2,492,00070) - HRE = EZFER
EUBRRBBDAINN - ARREIEE
RE ARRETESTHONESE
% WEZERE SEAFESETEE
M A E S E RSB RERSERELY
AR#1,992,000c (ZE=—F: AR
2,492,0007T) °

WA RBMEEMROBRD A
CRCOCFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z _—ZE—-—#+_-F=

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

t+—HILFE

22. AR REREMWEWVRKE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR FRT ARETT

Prepayments TEfT A 2,775 1,940
Deposits and other receivables (note) =& & E e Wk IR (BT EE) 10,304 8,355
13,079 10,295

Less: Impairment losses recognised (note) & : E MR EEE (M) (5,137) (5,000)
7,942 5,295

Movements of impairment losses recognised are as

ERREEBRZEFSHNT

follows:
2022 2021
—E=-= T —%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT ARETF T
At 1 January n—A—A8 5,000 -
Impairment loss recognised for the year T R#ER ZFEEE (M)
(Note) 137 5,000
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—H 5,137 5,000
Note: Fit & -

Included in other receivables at 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021 is receivable from a third party amounted to
RMB5,000,000. As this receivable remained outstanding for
a period of over 2 years, management considered that the
recovery of the receivable is highly uncertain and impairment
loss on this receivable amounted to RMB5,000,000 was
recognized in profit or loss in respect of prior year ended 31
December 2021.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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RZEZZF+ZA=+—RBR=ZZT=—
F+ZA=t+—HZzHMERFBERIERE
W —& % = J5 B A K ¥5,000,0007T ° #
RZBEWRRBEBRB2FREE EEER
B EZERFEFESETEEE - 8
7 FE A R RUE E 18 A R 5,000,000
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mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_-_F_-—#+_-H=+—HILFZF

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23. e RHEELEEEH
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFT
Bank balances and cash RITHEHBNIRE 405 399

At the end of the reporting period, the bank balances
and cash of the Group are mainly denominated in RMB.

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies.
Under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign
currencies through banks that are authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

RBERR AEEZRITEHRER

SETBUARBREM-

ARBAFFAIEHRLBAINENE
B RIEPBMINEE GRS KE
BEASBCDERBETINERTZ

RITUARE L HBINE

RERTT 2 M e BIFRITHFAFEITFR
FRIZZ BT R BREF B - R1T745 %%
TR EER M M EE DR

ZARAT e
24. TRADE PAYABLES 24. ENE SR
An aging analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice ENESEFBRBEEZAMZRRD

date, is as follows: IR UNNE
2022 2021
—E-= B —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥® TR AR®FT
0 to 90 days 0%£90H 744 1,280
91 to 180 days 91H=180H 643 640
181 to 365 days 181H £365H 20 1,052
Over 365 days H#iB365H 7,638 5,666
9,045 8,638

m&ﬁﬁta&ﬁggﬁmm 1 47
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e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

25. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

25. BErRERHtENKE

2022 2021
—E-= —E - —4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARKFT
Accrued construction cost and salaries, &t T2k 2N K 55 B &
and other payables H b FE S 5KIB 103,829 95,224
Other accrued expenses Hip gzt 9,498 8,767
Legal claims payable (note) EfDERERE (M) 8,087 5,124
Others H A 2,939 1,259
124,353 110,374
Note: ffat -
Movements of the legal claims payable are as follows: EfHERREZEFSHOT
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT ARBTF T
At 1 January wn—A—H 5,124 -
Loss on legal claims recognised in profit FARERRRAZEZRRE
or loss in respect of the year 2 BiE 2,963 5,124
At 31 December wnt+—_A=+—H 8,087 5,124

During the year, the Group received certain judgements issued
by PRC courts over legal claims lodged by purchase suppliers,
construction contractors and former employees of the Group
in respect of debts that the Group owed these parties. Having
reviewed the PRC courts’ judgements, management of the
Company considered it appropriate to recognize loss on legal
claims amounted to approximately RMB2,963,000 (2021:
RMB5,124,000), which represents additional payables to the
claimants as calculated to be the excess of the amounts of
payables judged over the payables and accrued expenses which
were accounted for in the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the previous years.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE_—ZFE—-—#+_-HA=+—HIFFZF

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 26. SHERE

2022 2021
—E-= —E -4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARKFT
Advance payments received from HEEEMB TP
customers for sales of goods Z Taft I8 5,928 5,522
Year ended 31 December BE+-A=+t—HLEFE
Revenue recognised in the year that FYFFAGHEELR
was included in contract liabilities at F N FER B W Z
beginning of year 35 -
Significant changes in contract REAFESGHEBENERED
liabilities during the year
Advance payments received during the year & A ULER 2 T8 1~ F T 441 682
Transfer of contract liabilities to revenue #EEA XA E ;ZEJ%Z (35) (648)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer products or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration from the customer.

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregated amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations under the Group’s existing contract is
approximately RMB5,487,000 (2021: RMB4,832,000).
This amount represents revenue expected to be
recognised in the future from sales of goods by the
Group to the customers. The Group will recognise the
expected revenue in future when the goods are assigned
to the customers, which is expected to occur over the
next 12 months (2021: next 12 months).

BEHRBEREAKRECREFHEM
ﬁ%ﬁﬁwﬁﬁuu KRB ET -

RZEZZF+—A=+—8 2K
EAEEREEOBRTETEENR
SERR T AN ARES,487,000
T(ZEZ—%F: AK®4,832,000
T0) oA RATBHNARKAEH
MEFPHEEYHEER WG AE
BN AREEMHDEEEFE (B
HAERKIZEA (ZE=Z—F: KK
1218 8 ) %34 ) mRBEH K-

mﬁﬁiﬁwtasmwﬁmm 1 49
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e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

27. AMOUNTS DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS

Analyses of the amounts due to shareholders are as

CE - —FfZA=+—HILFE

27. ERRRFE
FE R IB ST -

follows:
2022 2021
—ZE_-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TFT ARKFT
Amounts due to shareholders JE < AR 3R 5K IR
— secured by the Group's plant and —AAREBZHE LS
machinery (note 16) TR (Hfat16) - 1,350
— unsecured — IR 20,884 21,316
20,884 22,666
Amounts due to shareholders JE T AR R 5K IR
— interest recognised based on effective —HEBRFFE12.33%T
interest rate of 12.33% per annum 7 BEERT A
(note (b)) (FtaE®b)) 11,822 -
— interest recognised at chargeable rates of —I#&F4.35% — 5.12%
4.35% — 5.12% per annum (note (b)) S AR ERERZFE
(Mtit (b)) 9,062 22,666
20,884 22,666
Amounts due to shareholders repayable (& & fE [~ A% 52 7018
— on demand or within one year —RERKIN—FNR 9,062 20,284
- in the second year —F—4F - 2,382
— in the third to fifth year, inclusive —FE=FEFERF
(EEMEBRETEN) 11,822 -
20,884 22,666
Analysed for reporting purposes: MEREMDTWET
Classified in DEZE
— current liabilities —mEBAaE 9,062 20,284
— non-current liabilities —ERBEE 11,822 2,382
20,884 22,666

Notes:

ff 2 -

(@) During the current year, a shareholder of the
Company made additional loan amounted to
RMB1,150,000 to the Company. The loan is
unsecured, interest chargeable at interest rate of
3.65% per annum and is repayable on demand.
During the current year, the Group made repayment

to the shareholder amounted to RMB170,000.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

27. AMOUNTS DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS

Notes: (continued)

(b)

(@

In December 2022, the Company entered into an
agreement with the shareholder for the revision of
the terms of a part of the loan due to the shareholder
with effect from 1 January 2022, pursuant to which
(i) the repayment of the loan due by the Group to the
shareholder with the principal amount of RMB14,600,000
has been extended to the revised maturity date of 26
December 2026; and (ii) interest is chargeable on the
outstanding amount at 5.12% per annum.

The fair value of the unsecured loan due to the
shareholder with the principal amount of RMB14,600,000
at the effective date of the revision of terms of the loan
was estimated to be approximately RMB10,524,000,
using the effective interest rate of 12.33% per annum,
as valued by an external valuer. The gain arising from
the revision of the terms of the shareholder’s loan
amounted to approximately RMB4,076,000 (2021:
gain on additional shareholders’ loans amounted to
approximately RMB4,000), which was calculated as the
difference between the principal amount of the loan
of RMB14,600,000 (2021: RMB2,240,000) and the fair
value of the loan of approximately RMB10,524,000
(2021: RMB2,236,000), was dealt with in equity and
was included in other reserve of the Group. At 31
December 2022, the face amount of this loan due to
the shareholder, comprising the principal amount and
accrued interest thereon, amounted to approximately
RMB14,600,000. The effective interest rate at 31
December 2022 adopted for this loan is 12.33% per
annum.

The aggregate face amount of the amounts due to
shareholders remained outstanding at 31 December
2022, excluding the shareholder’s loan set out in note b,
is approximately RMB9,062,000 (2021: RMB22,666,000),
comprising the principal amounts and accrued interest
thereon.

TE - HFA+ _HA=+—HILFE

27. ERRRFE
BisE: (4%)

(b)

(@

RZEZZF+ZR ARAIHRK
WA ek DMERT B D ET IR R
BRZEREZE__F—H—H
AR FBIt- (VEEXRAEEER
Hﬁ%ZZﬁﬁ%ﬁAE%M,Goqoooﬁ
Zi‘makﬁ:‘ﬁ,ﬁ& RS e
ZRE+ZAZ+RB R)EE
EEEBAIRETF5.12% 2 FI R U E

5= & B
B o
B2

Rl

SH

LOHONHERMEHE RIEFTEX
BERERBHASEARARE
14,600,0007T 2 F& 1 B% 3R 4 K
?ﬂﬂiﬁ?kzaﬂ?@fﬁ%%@?%/\ﬁ
#10,524,0000  BERFF X &
12.33% ° & JH&%TM%XFEZ
Iz B ANR%4,076,0007T (= F
ZFEMNRRERZKE AL
AR #4,0007T) * m;?féf?kZZKi
%8 AR #14,600,0000 =T ——
/\EMZ 240 OOOE)méﬁiiﬁmz
NFELHARE10,524,0005T (=
T —F: /\Eﬁ%nzasooomz
Fﬁ%%aﬁ CHEREENEE
er/\ZIS%IZEﬂWéﬁ TR E
::¢+—ﬂz+f5 Ut E
BEER(BREASEREERTF
,%)Eﬁﬁﬁi%iﬁAEﬁ%M@oooo
T EBETIRMAZ N
F+-A=t—HEBNXAE
F12.33% °

=

R-ZFE-—F+-A=+—RMK

B8 2 BN BCERFIE (T B ED
P&l s 2 R E ) MAEE /LD

ANER#9,062,000T (— T~ —4:
ANE#22,666,0007T) - BIEARSEE
MEREFFE -

mﬁﬁiﬁw%awuwﬁmm 1 51

B



15

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

B CHFfZA=+—HIFE

28. BRITRHEMEE

2022 2021
—Eg-— %
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F R ARMF T
Bank borrowing (note (a)) T1EE (K@) 10,581 10,650
Other borrowings (note (b)) & & (HaEb)) 58,016 83,058
68,597 93,708
2022 2021
—E-= B —%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARKFT
Analysed for reporting purposes: MEREMDTWET :
Bank and other borrowings R TAEIRIE YR ZRIT R
shown under: HiEE:
- current liabilities -mBaE 16,052 93,708
- non-current liabilities -ERBEE 52,545 -
68,597 93,708
Part of these bank and other borrowings were not ZERTREMBEE R RIREME
repaid in accordance with the relevant loan agreements. HMEXHREE A RZT=_—
Accordingly, these borrowings with the aggregate FH+-_A=+—H ZEKREEHE

outstanding balances of approximately RMB5,472,000 at
31 December 2022 (2021: RMB92,908,000) are included
in current liabilities. The remaining other borrowings
with the outstanding balance of RMB10,580,000 at
31 December 2022 (2021: RMB800,000) are repayable
within one year after the end of the reporting period and
are also included in current liabilities.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2022

WEE A A AN R ¥5,472,000 (—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(continued)

Details of the bank and other borrowings are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

e

=

F+_A=+—HILFE

28. SRITRHMEE (&)

RITREMBEEZFHBET:

2022 2021
—E-CF T —%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF ARKTFIT
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE
Interest bearing =) 68,545 93,656
Non-interest bearing & B 52 52
68,597 93,708
2022 2021
—E-C—fF T —%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARMTFIT
Borrowings repayable: [EERIEE
On demand or within one year BRBERGPD—FR 16,052 93,708
In the second year BE-FNRN - -
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F_EFERF
(EEMFEBEEAN) 52,545 -
68,597 93,708
Less: Amount due for settlement within B R1IEARNEE
12 months (shown under current FETFRIE (A7
liabilities) BEBTIR) (16,052) (93,708)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months #1218 B 14 & & > fE 218
(shown under non-current liabilities) (RIERBBABETHT) 52,545 -

m&ﬁﬁta&ﬁggﬁmm 1 53



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 28. RITRHEMBE (&)
(continued)
The guarantees and securities given for the bank and REMERARRRITREMEERMH
other borrowings at the end of each reporting period are ZEREEHRAT
as follows:
2022 2021
—ZE_= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARMFT ARETT

Secured bank and other borrowings BIERPETRHEMEE

(note (c)) (Ktaz(c)) 12,142 15,012
Unsecured other borrowings EERAMEER 56,455 78,696
68,597 93,708

Notes: Fft 5t -

(a) The bank borrowing, which carries interest at bank (a) MITEE (RB|BITERFENEE
lending rate plus a specific margin, is due for repayment ZRFR) ARBREHRE—FRNE
within one year after the end of the reporting period. HifEE -

(b)  An analysis of the other borrowings is as follows: (b)y EHMEEZHWHOT:

2022 2021
—E-CF —EF - —F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

fff ARBFRT ARETT

Loan from a director of the Company  REARAG —ZBEZBZZER () 320 309

Loan from the holding company of a REARRNE —BRE 2 IERR
shareholder of the Company RAIZER (ii) 6,995 7,905
Loan from third parties KAE=ZFZEXR (i) 50,701 74,844
58,016 83,058

Notes: Bt -

(i)  The loan from a director of the Company, Mr. Yuan (i) REXARAEZEERERKE
Guoliang is unsecured, carries interest at 4.35% per ZEXRREER REMNE
annum and is repayable on demand 4.35%=T B IR ERKIER -

(iy The loan from the holding company of a (i) READAE—ABRRZEBRA
shareholder of the Company is unsecured, carries Al Z BRI - IR ER R
interest at 12% per annum and is repayable by 31 2% ERARZT ZRF
December 2026 (2021: the loan was repayable on TZA=FT—HARE(-F
demand or within one year after the end of the T RERARERIR
reporting period). HERRE—FANER)

1 5 Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(continued)
Note: (continued)

(b)

(@

(continued)

(iii)  During the current year, the Company entered into
agreements in December 2022 with a loan lender
for the revision of the terms of the loans with effect
from 1 January 2022, pursuant to which:

- repayments of the loans with the aggregate
principal amount of RMB50,000,000 have
been extended to the revised maturity date of
31 December 2026;

- interests are chargeable on these loans at
12% per annum; and

- accumulated interests charged on the loans
amounted to approximately RMB22,647,000
were waived by the loan lender.

The interests payable amounted to approximately
RMB22,647,000 waived by the loan lender have
been credited to profit or loss of the Group for the
current year and were included in other income,
gains and losses, net (note 9).

The fair value of the other borrowings with
the principal amount of RMB56,959,0000 was
estimated to be approximately RMB46,775,000 at
the effective date of the revision of the terms of the
loan, using the effective interest rate of 12.33% per
annum, as valued by an external valuer. The gain on
revision of the other borrowings, of approximately
RMB10,184,000, which was calculated as the
difference between the fair value of the other
borrowings of approximately RMB46,775,000 and
their principal amounts of RMB56,959,000 has
been credited to profit or loss of the Group for the
current year and was included in other income,
gains and losses, net (note 9).

As 31 December 2022, the aggregate face amount
of the other borrowings from third parties remained
outstanding is approximately RMB62,431,000
(2021: RMB83,058,000), comprising the principal
amounts and interests thereon. The effective interest
rates at 31 December 2022 adopted for these other
borrowings ranged from 2% to 30% per annum
(2021: 2% to 30% per annum).

These bank and other borrowings are secured by (i) the
pledge of the Group’s right-of-use asset located at No.7,
Dianzi Street, Demonstration Zone, Shanxi, the PRC (note
17) and certain buildings (note 16); and (ii) guarantee
given by a shareholder of the Company.

mEMBERRHE

TE - HFA+ _HA=+—HILFE

28. BITREMMEE (£&)

Bt

(@

it (&)

(i) AAEE AARR-_T_—
F+-—fgE— %EMJ\JiTﬁ%
HUMERTERZER (AT
T oHE—-A—BHEER E
I -

- EBXRSHLBARKE
50,000,000c 2 EFHE
=BT BB A
H-_FE-XRF+_-A
=+—8:

- REEREZ tEQ%Z
S st

- ZEEREWRER Z K5
FELANRE22,647,000
TTEEERARE -

ERAREZENAFEHAR
#22,647, OOOREW\ZKEI
RAFEEZEBHER THFFA
Hug Az R EIE - F8E
(FH5EQ) °

EONER L E BT (R E - B ET
Amﬁﬁ$ﬂ5%$§ﬁ%
#) AN R #56,959,0005T 2 &
HEEZ A FERFBFTHAEA
R #46,775,0007T B B4+
ﬂ“ﬂz 33% < B E Hfbfg
EGREEZREABHAR
ﬁ%1o,184,ooo T iR E
HEEZAFEAREY
46,775,000t EEE AR S FAAR
%56,959,000%2%%@%%5%
F BEFARKERAKFE
ZT@ S0 B AEMUA - UL
m Mg TR FEE (MI5E9) -

R —F+— A= +—
B MEREEZREE=FZ
HEMEEz#mEAAREY
62,431,0000 (=& = — 4 :
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

29. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS

29. JEE BT & BY

The Group received government grants for the Group's
facilities for development and research of its products,
and for enhancing the Group’s production facilities. The
amounts are deferred and amortised over the estimated
useful lives of the respective assets.

1 56 Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARMTFT
Government grants received BT & B
At 1 January and R—RA—B Kk
at 31 December Rt+-—A=+—8H 48,302 48,302
Released to profit or loss BEExn
At 1 January n—HA—H 26,285 23,980
Recognised in profit or loss in respect NAFEBERNER
of the year 2,250 2,305
At 31 December Rt+t=-—HA=+—8H 28,535 26,285
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 19,767 22,017
Analysed for reporting purposes: MEBMEMDTLT :
Classified in DEE
— current liabilities —mENEE 2,237 2,250
- non-current liabilities —3JERBAE 17,530 19,767
19,767 22,017

AREETALEE 2 E MR AR
RAAEBEZEERBESEATE
By e 2 FHRIANAEEE 2 AR A 2
R B YR A K 3 o
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31.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ_-—E - —F+_-_A=+—HILFEZE
SHARE CAPITAL 30. A
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ Tt ARKTFIT
Authorised, issued and fully paid: A BBITRAUZIR
198,860,000 (2021: 198,860,000) 198,860,000/%
domestic shares of RMB0.10 each (== —F:
198,860,0004% )
FREEAREC.107T
< NERK 19,886 19,886
110,000,000 (2021: 110,000,000) H 110,000,000/%
shares of RMBO0.10 each (== —F:
110,000,0004% )
FREEAREC.107T
Z HBZ 11,000 11,000
30,886 30,886
There were no changes in the Company’s share capital RBE_ZTZ-_F+=-A=+—HK

during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31
December 2021.

Except for the currency in which dividends are paid and
the restrictions as to whether the shareholders can be the
PRC investors or foreign investors, domestic shares and H
shares rank pari passu with each other.

RESERVES
Group

(a)

(b)

Capital surplus

The capital surplus of the Group represents the
excess of the issue price over the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued at a premium.

Statutory surplus reserve

The Company’s articles of association require the
appropriation of 10% of the Company's profit after
tax each year to the statutory surplus reserve until the
balance reaches 50% of the Company’s registered
capital. According to the provisions of the Company’s
articles of association, in normal circumstances, the
statutory surplus reserve shall only be used for making
up losses, capitalisation into share capital and expansion
of the Company’s production and operations. For the
capitalisation of the statutory surplus reserve into share
capital, the remaining amount of such reserve shall not
be less than 25% of the registered capital.

—E-—F+-_A=+—HIHFE"
AR Z A ) o

BB EE AR IR 2 A IA
A2 l%xé%ﬂi@\\ﬂ&ﬁ%ﬂ’]ﬁﬁ%‘l

N OB IR HAR 18 1t = 7 R T o
31. 15
KEE
(a) BxEE
ANEBE KRB B IEEITERBE
HBRITHADTRG 2 BES
5o
(b) ETREEE

AARIMEBERARETE &
FRARBADNAKRBEENZ
10% 2R TERHKREE BEEET
BB SEDA DR MR
R250%  BREBEA NG EBEER
MARE NEBBIAT AT
BHREHEETRANBEEE &
FERR AR R AN R 2 A EE R AE
oA TERBBEEENM AR
s BRERBIHBBIBIRN
A A 25% o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

31. RESERVES (continued) 31.

Group (continued)
(c) Other reserve

The other reserve of the Group at 31 December
2022 represents the fair value gain arising from the
shareholder’s loan.

Company

The amounts of the Company’s reserves and the
movements therein for the year ended 31 December
2022 are as follows:

& (&)

AEMH (&)

(c) HftfHE
RZE-_—F+-"HF=+—HRK
SEEMREEEERERERE
2N FERE-

FiNG/NE]|
AATREBE-_E-_—_&F+=-A1
T+ HIEFEZREREEH 2
BT

Statutory
Capital surplus Other Accumulated
surplus reserve reserve losses Total
EREH LERBEE Hit e 2t ER @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETRT
At 1 January 2022 A\E-—F—F—H 18,561 11,853 981 (179,875) (148,480)
Profit and total comprehensive EHRERZARAES
income for the year - - - 12,192 12,192
Fair value gain arising from REEREE AT ERE
shareholder's loan (note 27) (HisE27) - - 4,076 - 4,076
Transferred from other reserve to BEMFEERERTEE
accumulated losses - - (981) 981 -
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+ZA=+—H 18,561 11,853 4,076 (166,702) (132,212)
At 1 January 2021 RZZ--F-H—H 18,561 11,853 977 (140,188) (108,797)
Loss and total comprehensive loss B R FR 2 EEER
for the year - - - (39,687) (39,687)
Fair value gain arising from REEHREEZ AT ERE
shareholder's loan (note 27) (BFE27) - - 4 - 4
At 31 December 2021 R-E--F5+-A=+—H 18,561 11,853 981 (179,875) (148,480)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_-_F_-—#+_-H=+—HILFZF

32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 32. RERERERME
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Changes in liabilities arising from financing MEITHELECEEZED
activities
The following table shows the Group’s changes in TRINTAFEAREEREEEE
liabilities arising from financing activities during the year: ErBBEZEE:
Interest
payable
(included
in accruals Amounts Bank and
and other due to other
payables)  shareholders  borrowings Total
ERFIE (BT A
JERT AR
HEMAHE) EBARRRE RORELEE a8
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  AREFTT  ARKTR
At 1 January 2021 RZZ--F-H—H - 19,595 90,087 109,682
Financing cash inflows HERLRA - 2,240 45 2,285
Financing cash outflows BERSTM (65) - (3,930) (3,995)
Non-cash changes #ReE
~ Fair value gain arising from shareholder's — R & E £ 2 A FEME
loans - (4) - (4)
- Interest charges -MEER 65 835 7,506 8,406
At 31 December 2021 and R-B--F+-A=1-RER
1 January 2022 R-E--f-A-H - 22,666 93,708 116,374
Financing cash inflows BERLRA - 1,150 - 1,150
Financing cash outflows BEBRERL (58) (170) (837) (1,065)
Non-cash changes FREED
- Fair value gain on other borrowings - H#ifEH 2 A FEKE - - (10,184) (10,184)
- Fair value gain arising from -RREFEEZATERES
shareholder's loans - (4,076) - (4,076)
- Interest charges -FISER 58 1314 6,921 8,293
- Waiver of interests payable -RRERTIE - - (22,647) (22,647)
- Interest payable transferred from - BHMERFEER 2K
other payables Gi)-) - - 1,636 1,636
At 31 December 2022 R-Z--%#+-A=1+-H - 20,884 68,597 89,481

TS RSB B B B R A
—R-=FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZ—-ZFE=-—F+=-A=1+—HIFE

33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group’'s capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

33. ERAH
AR B PR R A ARSI T

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%Fx ARMTFIT
Contracted, but not provided for EHEENEICE S Y
— Capital contribution payable to —ENEERRENIELZ
an associate, Weiguang Feifan L& (ffaE19)
(note 19) 49 49

34. LITIGATIONS

During the year, the Company received certain
judgements issued by PRC courts regarding the litigations
lodged by purchase suppliers, construction contractors
and former employees of the Group which resulted
in legal claims payable amounted to approximately
RMB8,087,000 (2021: RMB5,124,000) recognised in the
consolidated financial statements, details of which are set
out in note 25.

Up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Group, as defendant, has outstanding
litigation regarding the appeal by a construction
contractor against the judgment issued by PRC court
regarding the legal claim lodged by the contractor.
Management of the Company is of the view that the
Group has merits on the litigation and considered that
this litigation would not result in additional provision
for legal claims having to be made in the consolidated
financial statements.

Apart from the above, management of the Company is
not aware of any outstanding litigations at the end of the
reporting period and up to the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements which would result in
material adverse impact on the financial position of the
Group.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2022

34. iR

FA - AR RUE A B A BT SR B A
ER BEAREMAESENEER
REEFFEAT B B e E T AR BER
REMBHREAEREERREN
FIEL AR 8,087,000 (—ZFE=—
% :5,124,0007T) - BEAFIBEHII R
B 5E25 o

BEZSHAMBHRRIUERT K
SEESREN —RRERBHET
BUAB Lz A BB R OARBERM
T Z HORIBAE EERTER ARIRFFAR ©
ARAEEERRARERZLIFAF
BEEEEE ARA/ZFATEE
BN A SRR N AR AR B R
TRRRIMNEE -

Br Eaioh AR EAREE EZEL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties for the year:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Key management compensation

The compensation of key management personnel
is disclosed in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Sales of goods to related parties

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group made sales of goods at the sale prices of
approximately RMB415,000 (2021: RMB6,853,000)
to one (2021: two) related party which is
beneficially owned by Mr. Wu Bo, the Company’s
director. At the end of the reporting period, the
sales to one of these parties to the extent of
approximately RMB910,000 (2021: RMB1,495,000)
remained outstanding which was included in the
Group's trade and bills receivables.

Loans from a director and the holding
company of shareholder

The director of the Company, Mr. Yuen Guoliang, and
the holding company of a substantial shareholder of the
Company made loans to the Group and the balances
of the loans payable to the director and the holding
company remained outstanding at 31 December 2022
are approximately RMB320,000 (2021: RMB309,000)
and RMB6,995,000 (2021: RMB7,905,000) respectively.
Details of the loans payable to the director and the
holding company of the shareholder are set out in
notes 28(b)(i) and note 28(b)(ii).

TE - HFA+ _HA=+—HILFE

35. MEALRS
BRERaVBRREBEHARES
S REBFERNEANTEEEAL
R

(a)

(b)

(c)

FTEEBEABZHEM
TREEABZHMBEERGE
AR MIEE3

BEEALTHEER

REzE—_ZE-_—F+-_HA=+—
BIEFE AEBRBEEEHA
R#¥415,0000 (Z & = —F:
AR #6,853,0007T) [A—4%& (=
T —F WEZ)BEAL(H
RRRBERBEEERMSE)
HEER - REHR YW—F
ZEREATZHESBHA
R #¥910,000t (Z & = —F:
AR#1,495,00070 ) R A -
Bt ALREEZEKE SERK

ESE

RE—BESBUR—BREZ
ERATZER
RAREBEERBREEURAEAR
A —RE BB ZIZER AT RA
EEELREFR UERZZE-_—
F+-_A=1+—HMKEEZE
NZEERIER AR 2 BB
o Bl A% AR #320,0007T (=
T——F: AR¥309,0007T) &
AR #6,995,000C (=ZF = —
F: AR #7,905,0007T) ° fE 1
BEERMEZERRAFBZER
2 FEIBEYI AT EE28(b)() R Ft 7E
28(b)(ii) °

TS RSB B B B R A
—R-=FFH
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 36. At=ZA=1+—BZX23H

THE COMPANY AS AT 31 DECEMBER B 35 AR O 3/
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARMFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment e R E ] 114,967 114,163
Right-of-use assets FREEE 9,365 9,658
Interests in associates REE R R 2w - -
124,332 123,821
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 10,148 10,455
Trade and bills receivables JEWE ZERA R EE 7.736 8,486
Prepayments, deposits and other TERT R 1R & I H fth fE R IE
receivables 7,788 5,092
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEEE 268 93
25,940 24,126
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables FETE 5 BRI 8,585 8,179
Accruals and other payables J& &t BRI B EL A FE A FRIE 123,300 110,013
Contract liabilities BB E 5,928 5,522
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAT BB A B FRIE 4,857 3,745
Amounts due to shareholders JE AR R Rk I8 9,062 20,284
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 15,732 93,399
Deferred government grants BTN & B 2,237 2,250
169,701 243,392
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFHE (143,761) (219,266)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEABERRBEE
LIABILITIES (19,429) (95,445)

1 6 Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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mEMBERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #BZE_-_F_-—#+_-H=+—HILFZF

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 36 At A=+—HAXLQXTH
OF THE COMPANY AS AT 31 DECEMBER MR RE (&)
(continued)
2022 2021
—E-= —E -4
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000

EES ARMFT ARETT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Amounts due to shareholders &S IR SR 3R IR 11,822 2,382
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEER 52 545 _
Deferred government grants BEEBNTE B 17.530 19 767
81,897 22,149

NET LIABILITIES BEFH (101,326) (117,594)
EQUITY E=
Share capital A& AN 30,886 30,886
Reserves & 31 (132,212) (148,480)
TOTAL DEFICIT ON EQUITY B RS EE (101,326) (117,594)
The Company's statement of financial position was RKABZHBERAERR - E_=FH
approved and authorised for issue by the board of RThBRESGHAE RRKEEM
directors on 19 May 2023 and is signed on its behalf by: WHATATREESE:

Wu Bo Jiao Baoguo

Director Director

ZF EZF

umRAtcERHEAERAT {63
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EIFEMBRE

The following is a summary of the audited results and of the
assets and liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 31

December 2022.

\\\\\\

Year ended 31 December

BEEt-RA=t—-HLEE

TERBAAEEBEE_T—
St RALREAFEZRERFEREE

—F+=A

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—=E-z —E-—F ZE-FF —T-N\F —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥EFT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFTT
RESULTS EF
Revenue U 15,535 18,417 8,061 39,609 26,386
Operating profit/(loss) mERm (ER) 20,711 (32,051) (18,821) 1,056 (23,969)
Finance costs BT 75 & F (8,293) (8,406) (9,096) (9,189) (5,272)
Profit/(Loss) before tax BrEATEF] (B518) 12,418 (40,457) (27,917) (8,133) (29,241)
Income tax expenses FTEHMAX - - - (1) -
Profit/(Loss) for the year FRmEH,/ (FE) 12,418 (40,457) (27,917) (8,134) (29,241)
Attributable to: AT FEAL
Owners of the Company ~ AREHEE A 12,430 (40,390) (27,911) (8,120) (29,237)
Non-controlling interests ~ FE¥EAGE % (12) (67) (6) (14) (4)
12,418 (40,457) (27,917) (8,134) (29,241)
At 31 December
R+=—HB=+—-H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-C —T-—F —E-FF —FT-NEF E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFT ARETT AREFT AREFIT ARETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES XJEHREE
Total assets EERE 150,648 148,505 173,752 162,034 148,317
Total liabilities BEEE (248,574)  (262,925)  (247,719)  (208,084)  (187,210)
Non-controlling interests ~ JE¥R R4 25 128 116 49 43 29
Total deficit attributable to  ZARAFHEHE AJE(S
owners of the Company Bl 4EE (97,798)  (114,304) (73,918) (46,007) (38,864)

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.

Annual Report 2022
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